AGENDA

Victor P. Lopez, Mayor
Diana Guerra Silva, Mayor Pro Tem Roy Rodriguez, Council Member
Esperanza Rodriguez, Council Member Josie Cervantes, Council Member

WEDNESDAY, AUGUST 28, 2019 - 6:30 P.M.
Orange Cove Council Chambers
633 6 Street, Orange Cove, California 93646

A. Call to Order/Welcome
Roll Call

Invocation
Flag Salute

B. Confirmation of Agenda

C. Consent Calendar

1. Council Minutes of August 14, 2019
2. Proclamation Declaring September 2019 Cancer Awareness

D. Administration

City Engineer:

3. SUBJECT: Alliance Building Solutions, Inc. to proceed with
an Energy Efficiency Audit

Recommendation: Staff recommends that City Council
authorize Alliance Building Solutions, to proceed with a
comprehensive utility analysis and preparation of an energy
efficiency feasibility report




Interim City Manager:

E.

4.

SUBJECT: Presentation of Fiscal Year 2017-18 Audit Report by
Price, Page and Company

Recommendation: Receive and File Audit Report

SUBJECT: Small Business Resource Workshop
Recommendation: Council to approve the Workshop scheduled
on November 12, 2019 from 6pm to 8pm located at the Victor P.
Lopez Center

SUBJECT: Financial Updates

Recommendation: Informational item only

Public Forum

Members of the public wishing to address the City Council on an item that is not on the
agenda may do so now. No action will be taken by the City Council this evening. But
items presented may be referred to the City Manager for follow up and a report. In order
to allow time for all comments, each individual is limited to three minutes. When
addressing the Council, you are requested to come forward to the speaker’s microphone,
state your name and address, and then proceed with your comments.

City Manager’s Report

City Attorney’s Report

7.

SUBJECT: City of Orange Cove Fraternization
Policy

Recommendation: Council to consider adopting the City of
Orange Cove Fraternization Policy

City Council Communications

Adjournment

ADA Notice: In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, if you need
special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the City Clerk at (559)
626-4488 ext. 214. Notification 48 hours prior to the meeting will enable the City to
make arrangements to ensure accessibility to this meeting.




Documents: Any writings or documents provided to a majority of the City Council
regarding any item on this agenda will be made available for public inspection at front
counter at City Hall and at the Orange Cove Library located at 815 Park Blvd., Orange
Cove, CA during normal business hours. In addition, most documents are posted on
City’s website at cityoforangecove.com.

STATEMENT ON RULES OF DECORUM AND ENFORCEMENT

The Brown Act provides that members of the public have a right to attend public
meetings, to provide public comment on action items and under the public forum section
of the agenda, and to criticize the policies, procedures, or services of the city or of the
acts or omissions of the city council. The Brown Act also provides that the City Council
has the right to exclude all persons who willfully cause a disruption of a meeting so that it
cannot be conducted in an orderly fashion.

During a meeting of the Orange Cove City Council, there is a need for civility and
expedition in the carrying out of public business in order to ensure that the public has a
full opportunity to be heard and that the Council has an opportunity to conduct business
in an orderly manner. The following is provided to place everyone on notice of the rules
of decorum and enforcement.

GENERAL RULES OF DECORUM

While any meeting of the City Council is in session, the following rules of
decorum shall be observed:

1. All remarks shall be addressed to the City Council as a whole and not to any
single member, unless in response to a question from a member of the City
Council.

2. A person who addresses the City Council under public comment for a specific

agenda item or under the Public Forum section of the agenda may not engage
in speech or conduct (i) which is likely to provoke others to violent or riotous
behavior, (if) which disturbs the peace of the meeting by loud and
unreasonable noise, (iii) which is irrelevant or repetitive, or (iv) which
disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes the orderly conduct of any City
Council meeting.




3. A person, other than members of the Council and the person, who has the
floor, shall not be permitted to enter into the discussion unless requested by
the Mayor to speak.

4. Members of the City Council may not interrupt a person who has the floor and
1s making public comments. Members of the City Council shall wait until a
person completes his or her public comments before asking questions or
commenting. The Mayor shall then ask Councilmembers if they have
comments or questions.

5. No person in the audience at a Council meeting shall engage in disorderly or
boisterous conduct, including the utterance of loud, threatening or abusive
language, whistling, stamping of feet or other acts which disturb, disrupt or
otherwise impede the orderly conduct of any Council meeting.

ENFORCEMENT OF DECORUM RULES
(Resolution No. 2012-16)

While the City Council is in session, all persons must preserve order and
decorum. A person who addresses the City council under public comment for a
specific agenda item or under the Public Forum section of the agenda may not
engage in speech or conduct which is likely to provoke others to violent or riotous
behavior, which disturbs the peace of the meeting by loud and unreasonable noise,
which is irrelevant or repetitive, or which disrupts, disturbs, or otherwise impedes
the orderly conduct of any City Council meeting.

The Mayor or other presiding officer shall request that a person who is breaching
the rules of decorum cease such conduct. If after receiving such a warning, the
person persists in breaching the rules of decorum, the Mayor or other presiding
officer may order the person to leave the City Council meeting. If such person
does not leave, the Mayor or presiding officer may request any law enforcement
officer who is on duty at the meeting as sergeant-at-arms to remove the person
from the Council Chambers. In the event there is no one from law enforcement
present, the Mayor or presiding officer may direct the City Manager to contact
law enforcement.

In accordance with the Point of Order Rule 4.6, the majority of the Council may
overrule the Mayor if the majority of the Council believes the Mayor or other
presiding officer is not applying the rules of decorum appropriately.




MINUTES
REGULAR CITY COUNCIL MEETING
AUGUST 14, 2019

The regular meeting of the Orange Cove City Council was called to order at 6:30 p.m. in
the Council chambers. Council members answering roll call were: E. Rodriguez, R.
Rodriguez, Cervantes, Mayor Pro Tem Silva and Mayor Lopez. Also present were
Interim City Manager Hernandez, City Attorney McClosky, Police Chief Rivera and
interested citizens.

The agenda for this meeting was duly posted in a location visible at all times by the
general public seventy-two hours prior to this meeting.

CONFIRMATION OF AGENDA: After discussion, the agenda was confirmed
unanimously.

CONSENT CALENDAR: Motion to approve the Consent Calendar was made by Mayor
Pro Tem Silva and seconded by Councilmember Cervantes. Motion carried with the
following vote:

AYES: 5 COUNCILMEMBERS: Silva, Cervantes, E. Rodriguez, R.
Rodriguez, Lopez
NOES: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None
ABSENT: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

a. Minutes of the June 26, 2019 regular meeting approved as written.

b. Minutes of the July 15, 2019 special meeting approved as written.

C. Check register dated August 1, 2019 (check nos. 044595-044795) approved
by standard motion.

d. Job description for position of Janitor approved as written.

e. Resolution No. 2019-45, A Resolution of the City Council of the City of
Orange Cove accepting the construction improvements for the 2015 ATP
School Safety Improvements Project and authorizing the City Manager to file
a Notice of Completion with the County of Fresno Recorder's Office.
Resolution approved by standard motion.

ENGINEERING MONTHLY REPORT: Assistant City Engineer Hall reviewed for the
Council the current status of various City projects. She was thanked for the report.

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING
THE CITY MANAGER TO SIGN AND FILE AN APPLICATION TO THE SAN
JOAQUIN VALLEY AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT (SJVAPCD) FOR THE
PURCHASE OF FIVE NEW ALTERNATIVE FUEL VEHICLES (SUBJECT 10




City of Orange Cove
Minutes

August 14, 2019
Page 2

RECEIPT OF GRANT): Assistant City Engineer Hall reported on a possible grant from
the San Joaquin Valley Air Pollution Control District (SJVAPCD) which would provide up
to $100,000 to pay for five alternative fuel vehicles. She reported that the City would be
applying for one (1) EC2 vehicle and four (4) EC4 vehicles.

After discussion, motion to approve RESOLUTION NO. 2019-46, A RESOLUTION OF
THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF ORANGE COVE AUTHORIZING THE CITY
MANAGER TO SIGN AND FILE AN APPLICATION TO THE SAN JOAQUIN VALLEY
AIR POLLUTION CONTROL DISTRICT (SJVAPCD) FOR THE PURCHASE OF FIVE
NEW ALTERNATIVE FUEL VEHICLES (SUBJECT TO RECEIPT OF GRANT) and to
take our share of costs from the General Fund was made by Councilmember R.
Rodriguez and seconded by Councilmember Cervantes. Motion carried with the
following vote:

AYES: 5 COUNCILMEMBERS: R. Rodriguez, Cervantes, E. Rodriguez,
Silva, Lopez
NOES: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: O COUNCILMEMBERS: None
ABSENT: O COUNCILMEMBERS: None

UPDATE ON THE FRIANT/KERN CANAL SHUTDOWN: Assistant City Engineer Hall
reviewed for the Council the current status of the Friant/Kern Canal shutdown. She was
thanked for the report.

POLICE DEPARTMENT MONTHLY REPORT (JULY 2019): Police Chief Rivera
reviewed the current monthly crime statistics for the Council and those present. He was
thanked for the report.

DESIGNATION OF LEAGUE CONFERENCE VOTING DELEGATE AND
ALTERNATE: After discussion, Mayor Lopez was chosen as the Voting Delegate and
Mayor Pro Tem Silva was chosen as the Alternate to the annual League Conference.
Motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: 5 COUNCILMEMBERS: Lopez, Silva, Cervantes, E Rodriguez,
R. Rodriguez
NOES: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: O COUNCILMEMBERS: None
ABSENT: O COUNCILMEMBERS: None
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CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON REQUEST FOR LETTER OF
SUPPORT FOR THE FRESNO COUNTY RURAL TRANSIT AGENCY’S (FCRTA
APPLICATION TO THE COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS (COG) FOR A
SUSTAINABLE INFRASTRUCTURE PLANNING GRANT FEASIBILITY STUDY: After
discussion, Mayor Pro Tem Silva moved to submit a Letter of Support to the Fresno
County Rural Transit Agency (FCRTA) in favor of their application to the Council of
Government’s (COG) for a Sustainable Infrastructure Planning Grant feasibility study.
Motion was seconded by Councilmember Cervantes and carried with the following vote:

AYES: 5 COUNCILMEMBERS: Silva, Cervantes, E. Rodriguez,
R. Rodriguez, Lopez
NOES: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None
ABSENT: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON APPROVAL OF FACILITY
AGREEMENT FOR USE OF SOCCER FIELDS AT DIANNE FEINSTEIN PARK: After
review, Councilmember R. Rodriguez moved and Councilmember E. Rodriguez
seconded the motion to approve the Soccer Field Facility Use Agreement at Dianne
Feinstein Park by the OC United Soccer Team with the following changes. Only one
field will be exclusive to the OC United Soccer Team, leaving one field open for public
use, and that the exclusive field becomes open to the public if the Team does not show
up by 6:30 p.m. The motion carried with the following vote:

AYES: 5 COUNCILMEMBERS: R. Rodriguez, E. Rodriguez, Cervantes,
Silva, Lopez
NOES: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None
ABSENT: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

The City Attorney was directed to make the fore-mentioned changes in the agreement.

SELECTION OF COMMITTEE TO REVIEW REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS (RFP’s
FOR ENGINEERING SERVICES FOR FEDERALLY-FUNDED TRANSPORTATION
PROJECTS: Interim City Manager Hernandez reviewed for the Council the need for an
independent engineering firm to review Federally-funded Transportation Projects and
asked that the Council approve the recommended five (5) committee members which
would review the Request for Proposals that had been received. Afier discussion,
Mayor Pro Tem Silva moved to approve the recommended committee members. The
motion was seconded by Councilmember E. Rodriguez. Motion carried with the
following vote:
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AYES: 5 COUNCILMEMBERS: Silva, E. Rodriguez, R. Rodriguez,
Cervantes, Lopez
NOES: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

ABSTAIN: 0O COUNCILMEMBERS: None
ABSENT: 0 COUNCILMEMBERS: None

CONSIDERATION AND NECESSARY ACTION ON FRATERNIZATION POLICY: City
Attorney McClosky reviewed for the Council a fraternization policy that has been
prepared and asked that Council review it for consideration at a future Council meeting.
He also stated that he is also asking the City’s employees and Union for their comments
and questions on the policy.

UPDATE ON FUTURE CITY EVENTS: Mr. David Lopez appeared before the Council
and reviewed recent and future City events.

PUBLIC FORUM: Mr. Manuel Ferreria, stepped to the podium to ask that various burnt
and vacant houses in town be fenced or boarded up because they are becoming an
“attractive nuisance” to area children.

COUNCIL REPORTS: Mayor Lopez thanked everyone involved in recent City events
for their hard work and efforts in making them a success.

ADJOURNMENT: There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at
7:45 p.m.

Respecifully submitted,

M dema2 Q. ﬁaATJ/J
Mefénie A. Carter

Acting City Clerk

Victor P. Lopez
Mayor
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Proclamation

DECLARING SEPTEMBER 2019 AS CHILDHOOD
CANCER AWARENESS MONTH IN THE CITY OF ORANGE COVE

WHEREAS, each year more than 300,000 children and youth under the age of 19 are diagnosed
with cancer worldwide; and

WHEREAS, childhood cancer is the #1 disease-related cause of death for children in the United
States and many other countries; and

WHEREAS, two-thirds of those who survive childhood cancer endure chronic health conditions
from the toxic effects of cancer treatment, including secondary cancers and other

life-threatening illnesses; and

WHEREAS, the causes of childhood cancer are largely unknown and more study is needed to
understand which treatments work best for children; and

WHEREAS, cancer treatment for children often must differ from traditional adult treatments to take
into account children’s development needs and other factors; and

WHEREAS, City of Orange Cove is a caring community that supports children and families;
NOW, THEREFORE, | MAYOR VICTOR P. LOPEZ on behalf of the City Council and our community, do here
by proclaim September 2019 as
CHILDHOOD CANCER AWARENESS MONTH
IN THE CITY OF ORANGE COVE, | ENCOURANGE ALL ORANGE COVE RESIDENTS TO LEARN MORE ABOUT

CHILDHOOD CANCERS AND CONSIDER WHAT WE ALL CAN DO TO SUPPORT CHILDREN WITH CANCER
AND THEIR FAMILIES.

J
A

R R R AT

§ Mayor, City of Orange Cove
A .
R R B e




CITY OF ORANGE COVE
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

To: Orange Cove City Council

From: Alfonso Manrique, City Engineer

Subject: Consideration to Authorize Alliance Building Solutions, Inc. to
Proceed with an Energy Efficiency Audit

Attachments: None

RECOMMENDATION:

Staff recommends that City Council authorize Alliance Building Solutions, Inc. to proceed with
a comprehensive utility analysis and preparation of an energy efficiency feasibility report.

BACKGROUND:

The City of Orange Cove is interested in evaluating the feasibility of an Energy Efficiency
Program, included infrastructure modernization, conservation, and sustainability. The
implementation of the program is to be self-funded from energy and operational savings.

Alliance Building Solutions, Inc. (Alliance) will be developing a comprehensive utility analysis
and preparing a project feasibility report for self-funding infrastructure improvements. In
additional, Alliance will be conducting staff meetings with City personnel to determine the
City’s technical needs and financial requirements. All findings will then be presented to the
City Council.

Staff will support Alliance in conducting the conceptual evaluation of such program by
providing utility billing information and the appropriate staff members for technical engineering
review meetings. If the project results in a positive recommendation, staff will request that City
Council authorize the implementation of the project.

Prepared by: _Angela Hall Approved by: _Alfonso Manrique
REVIEW: City Manager: Finance: City Attorney:
TYPE OF ITEM: COUNCIL ACTION: 0 APPROVED O DENIED 0 NO ACTION
Consent Public Hearing
Info Item Matter Initiated by a Coungil
X Action ltem Member
Department Report Other

Redevelopment Agency Continued to:




FISCAL IMPACT:

There is no fiscal impact associated with this item. Alliance agrees to provide the City with this
analysis at no cost or with any expectation of future compensation. While in the scope
development process, the City will not engage with any other energy services companies for
related work.

CONFLICT OF INTEREST:

None.

Prepared by: Angela Hall

Approved by: _Alfonso Manrigue

P W |

\,/ %
REVIEW: City Manager;d’ﬁ
N 7

Finance: City Attorney:

TYPE OF ITEM:
Consent
Info ltem
X Action ltem
Department Report

Redevelopment Agency

COUNCIL ACTION: 0 APPROVED 0 DENIED 0 NO ACTION

Public Hearing

Matter Initiated by a Council
Member

Other

Continued to:




PRICE PAIGE & COMPANY

Accountancy Corporation

The Place to Be

August 23, 2019

To the City Council of
City of Orange Cove, California

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orange Cove for the year ended June 30, 2018.
Professional standards require that we provide you with information about our responsibilities under generaily
accepted auditing standards (and, if applicable, Government Auditing Standards and the Uniform Guidance), as
well as certain information related to the planned scope and timing of our audit. We have communicated such
information in our letter to you dated August 2, 2018. Professional standards also require that we communicate to
you the following information related to our audit.

Significant Audit Matters

Qualitative Aspects of Accounting Practices

Management is responsible for the selection and use of appropriate accounting policies. The significant
accounting policies used by the City are described in Note 1 to the financial statements. No new accounting
policies were adopted and the application of existing policies was not changed during 2018. We noted no
transactions entered into by the City during the year for which there is a lack of authoritative guidance or
consensus. All significant transactions have been recognized in the financial statements in the proper period.

Accounting estimates are an integral part of the financial statements prepared by management and are based on
management’s knowledge and experience about past and current events and assumptions about future events.
Certain accounting estimates are particularly sensitive because of their significance to the financial statements
and because of the possibility that future events affecting them may differ significantly from those expected. The
most sensitive estimates affecting the City’s financial statements were:

Management has determined the economic useful lives of capital assets based on past history of
similar types of assets, future plan as to their use, and other factors that impact their economic
value to the City. We evaluated the key factors and assumptions used by management in
computing depreciation expense and believe that it is reasonable in relation to the financial
statements taken as a whole.

Management's estimate of the net pension liability and related deferrals is based on actuarial
valuations which include significant assumptions regarding discount rate, inflation, payroll growth,
projected salary increases and investment rate of return. We evaluated the key factors and
assumptions used to develop the liability and related deferrals in determining that it is reasonable
in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole

Certain financial statement disclosures are particularly sensitive because of their significance to financial
statement users. There were no sensitive disclosures affecting the financial statements.

The financial statement disclosures are neutral, consistent, and clear.
Difficulties Encountered in Performing the Audit

We encountered no significant difficulties in dealing with management in performing and completing our audit.

677 Scott Avenue
Clovis, CA 93612

tel 559.299.9540
fax 559.299.2344

WWW.DPCpPas.com




Corrected and Uncorrected Misstatements

Professional standards require us to accumulate all known and likely misstatements identified during the audit,
other than those that are clearly trivial, and communicate them to the appropriate level of management. The
attached schedule summarizes uncorrected misstatements of the financial statements. Management has
determined that their effects are immaterial, both individually and in the aggregate, to the financial statements
taken as a whole. The attached report to this letter details the material misstatements detected as a result of audit
procedures and were corrected by management:

Disagreements with Management

For purposes of this letter, a disagreement with management is a financial accounting, reporting, or auditing
matter, whether or not resolved to our satisfaction, that could be significant to the financial statements or the
auditor’s report. We are pleased to report that no such disagreements arose during the course of our audit.

Management Representations

We have requested certain representations from management that are included in the management
representation letter dated August 23, 2019.

Management Consultations with Other Independent Accountants

In some cases, management may decide to consult with other accountants about auditing and accounting matters,
similar to obtaining a “second opinion” on certain situations. If a consultation involves application of an
accounting principle to City’s financial statements or a determination of the type of auditor’s opinion that may be
expressed on those statements, our professional standards require the consulting accountant to check with us to
determine that the consultant has all the relevant facts. To our knowledge, there were no such consultations with
other accountants.

Other Audit Findings or Issues

We generally discuss a variety of matters, including the application of accounting principles and auditing
standards, with management each year prior to retention as the City’s auditors. However, these discussions
occurred in the normal course of our professional relationship and our responses were not a condition to our

retention.
Other Matters

We applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information (RSI) as listed in the table of
contents in the financial statements, which is RSI that supplements the basic financial statements. Our
procedures consisted of inquiries of management regarding the methods of preparing the information and
comparing the information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We did not audit
the RSI and do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the RSL

We were engaged to report on supplementary information as listed in the table of contents in the financial
statements (the supplementary information), which accompany the financial statements but are not RSl. With
respect to this supplementary information, we made certain inquiries of management and evaluated the form,
content, and methods of preparing the information to determine that the information complies with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the method of preparing it has not changed from
the prior period, and the information is appropriate and complete in relation to our audit of the financial statements.
We compared and reconciled the supplementary information to the underlying accounting records used to
prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements themselves.

Restriction on Use

This information is intended solely for the information and use of the City Council and management of the City of
Orange Cove and is not intended to be, and should not be, used by anyone other than these specified parties.

Very truly yours,

Pruce Puge ¥ Compamy.

Price Paige & Company
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Orange Cove, California

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental acltivities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orange Cove, California
(the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial statements, which
collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of intemal conirol relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Audifing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of
the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those
risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the City’s preparation and presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit
also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used in the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial
statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Orange Cove, California, as of June 30, 2018, and the respective
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changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters
Required Supplementary Information

Management has omitted management’s discussion and analysis that accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America require to be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
missing information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental
Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic
financial statements in an appropriate operational, economie, or historical context. Our opinion on the basic
financial statements is not affected by this missing information.

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the budgetary information
on pages 49-50, the City’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Asset/Liability and Contributions on pages
51-52, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although not a part of the
basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operatjonal,
economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary
information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and
other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion
or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient
evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. '

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the City of Orange Cove, California’s basic financial statements. The other supplementary information
as listed in the table of contents (the other supplementary information) is not a required part of the basic
financial statements.

The other supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate
directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such
information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements
and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial
statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in refation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

Gther Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated August 23, 2018, on
our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with
certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that
report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance
and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control
over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the City’s internal control over financial reporting and
compliance.

Pruce Prage- 4 44”’?4"”‘;—

Clovis, California
August 23, 2019
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

ASSETS
Cash and investments
Cash and investments - restricted
Cash with fiscal agent - restricted
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable
Due from other governments
Internal balances
Notes receivable
Land held for resale
Net pension asset
Capital assets, net of depreciation

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses

Accrued interest
Deposits
Compensated absences
Unearned revenues
Long-term liabilities:

Due within one year

Due in more than one year
Net pension liability

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources from pensions

Total deferred inflows of resources

NET POSITION
Net investments in capital assets
Restricted for:
Debt service
Community development
Capital projects
Public safety
Day care
Specific projects and programs
Total restricted
Unrestricied

Total net position

JUNE 30, 2018

Governmental  Business-Type

Activities Activities Total
$ 2,165,494 § 711371 § 2,876,865
66,694 - 66,694
- 10,763 10,763
185,308 568,968 754,276
247,630 1,367 248,997
464,831 178,705 643,536
493,266 (493,266) -
3,007,717 - 3,007,717
874,841 - 874,841
222,540 - 222,540
8,468,674 17,794,484 26,263,158
16,196,995 18,772,392 34,969,387
453,153 203,519 656,672
453,153 203,519 656,672
167,687 200,576 368,263
18,501 12,228 30,729
- 39,712 39,712
129,009 40,897 169,906
200,606 - 200,606
72,178 67,120 139,298
1,056,162 1,206,085 2,262,247
- 557,254 557,254
1,644,143 2,123,872 3,768,015
123,983 82,516 206,499
123,983 82,516 206,499
7,340,334 16,521,279 23,861,613
402,239 10,763 413,002
658,238 - 658,238
308,066 - 308,066
8,864 - 8,864
76,668 - 76,668
957,059 - 957,059
2,411,134 10,763 2,421,897
5,130,554 237,481 5,368,035
$ 14882022 $ 16,769,523 $ 31,651,545

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF CRANGE COVE
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Net Revenue (Expense) and

Program Revenue Changes in Net Position
Operating Capital
Charges for Grants and Grants and  Governmental Business-Type
Functions/Programs Expenses Services Contributions _Contributions Activities Activities Total
Govemmental activities:
General government $ 443,599 $ 54,429 $ - 8 - $  (389,170) $ - $ (389,170)
Public safety 1,566,826 143,520 572,418 - (850,888) - (850,888)
Public works 205,720 - - - (205,720) - (205,720)
Planning and development 764,963 162,022 1,102,643 - 499,702 - 499,702
Streets 758,887 - 807,217 9,283 57,613 - 57,613
Parks and recreation 375,456 - 24,8692 - (350,784) - (350,764)
Day care 1,159,960 7,078 1,162,873 - 9,991 - 9,991
Interest and other fiscal charges 75,732 - - - (75.732) - (75,732)
Total governmental activities 5,351,143 367,049 3,669,843 9,283 (1,304,968) - (1,304,968)
Business-type activities:
Water 1,975,556 1,425,302 - 326,936 - (223,318) (223,318)
Sewer 1,520,551 827,123 - 17,987 - (675,441) (675,441)
Disposal 554,434 634,937 5,000 - - 85,503 85,503
Total business-type activities 4,050,541 2,887,362 5,000 344,923 - (813,256) (813,256)
Total primary government $ 9401684 $ 3254411 § 3674843 § 354,206 (1,304,968) (813,256) (2,118,224)
General revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes and special assessments 332,471 - 332,471
Sales taxes 191,942 - 191,942
Franchise taxes 68,764 - 68,764
Utility users tax 499,477 - 499,477
Business licenses 23,709 - 23,709
Motor vehicle in-lieu 783,204 - 783,204
Unrestricted investment earnings 69,032 (202) 68,830
Other 70,868 - 70,868
Transfers 59.894 (59.894) -
Total general revenues and transfers 2,099,361 (60,096) 2,038,265
Change in net position 794,393 (873,352) (78,959)
Net position, beginning of year 14,087,629 17,642,875 31,730,504
Net position, end of year $ 14,882,022 $ 16,769,523 § 31,651,545

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.



CITY OF ORANGE COVE
BALANCE SHEET ~ GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

ASSETS

Cash and investments

Cash and investments - restricted
Accounts receivable

Interest receivable

Due from other governments

Due from other funds

Notes receivable

Land held for resale
Total assets

LIABILITIES

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Due to other funds

Uneamed revenues

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESQURCES
Unavailable revenues

Total deferred inflows of resources

FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable:
Notes receivable
Land held for resale
Restricted:
Low-income housing activities
Daycare
Circulation improvements
Community development
Capital improvement projects
Public safety
Debt service
Unassigned

Total fund balance

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance

JUNE 30, 2018

Low-Moderate

Local Housing Housing

General Transportation Asset Grant
$ 430,618 § 430,180 $ 71,031 $ 91,815
185,308 - - -
1,573 569 161,237 81,949
106,515 70,792 - -
761,426 - - -
- - 275,000 2,710,105
376,000 - - -
$ 1861440 $ 501,541 $§ 507,268 $ 2,883,869
$ 137,124 § 1,390 $ -9 -
137,124 1,390 - -
- 46,721 436,237 2,791,785
- 48,721 436,237 2,791,785
376,000 - - -
- - 71,031 -
- 453,430 - 92,084
1,348,316 - - -
1,724,316 453,430 71,031 92,084
$ 1861440 $ 501,541 $ 507,268 $ 2,883,869

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

(Continued)
Other Total
Governmental  Governmental
Day Care Streets Funds Funds
ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 8,404 3 -3 1,133,446 § 2,165,494
Cash and investments - restricted 66,694 - - 66,694
Accounts receivable - - - 185,308
Interest receivable 11 - 2,291 247,630
Due from other governments 202,165 - 85,359 464,831
Due from other funds - - - 761,426
Notes receivable - - 22,612 3,007,717
Land held for resale - - 498,841 874,841
Total assets $ 277274 $ - 5 1,742549 $ 7,773,941
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and accrued expenses $ -3 - $ 29,173 § 167,687
Due to other funds - 16,360 251,800 268,160
Unearned revenues 200,606 - - 200,606
Total liabilities 200,606 18,360 280,973 636,453
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESCURCES
Unavailable revenues - - - 3,274,743
Total deferred inflows of resources - - - 3,274,743
FUND BALANCE
Nonspendable:
Noies receivable - - - -
Land held for resale - - - 376,000
Restricted:
Low-income housing activities - - 8,715 79,746
Daycare 78,668 - - 76,668
Circulation improvements - - 331,799 877,313
Community development - - 658,238 658,238
Capital improvement projects - - 308,066 308,066
Public safety - - 8,864 8,864
Debt service - - 402,239 402,239
Unassigned - (16,360) (256,345) 1,075,611
Total fund balance 76,668 (16,360) 1,461,576 3,862,745
Total liabilities, deferred inflows of
resources, and fund balance $ 277274 $ - % 1,742,549 § 7,773,941

The notes fo the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION
JUNE 30, 2018

Total fund balances - govemmental funds $ 3,862,745

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position
are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 8,468,674

Net pension asset used in governmental activities are not current
financial resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 222,540

Interest payable on long-term debt does not require the use of current
financial resources. Therefore, interest payable is not reported as a
liability in the governmental funds balance sheet. (18,501)

Compensated absences are not due and payable in the current period
and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. (129,009)

Pension related deferrals are reported as deferred outflows and inflows

of resources on the statement of net position:
Deferred outflows of resources 453,153
Deferred inflows of resources (123,983)

Long-term liabilities are not due and payable in the current period and,
therefore, are not reported in the funds.

Bonds and loans payable (1,128,340)
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period

expenditures and, therefore, are reported as unavailable revenues in the
funds. 3,274,743

Net position of govemnmental activities $ 14,882,022

The notes to the basic financial staiements are an integral part of this statement.




CITY OF ORANGE COVE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018

Low-Moderate

Local Housing Housing
General Transportation Asset Grant
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,732,158 % - $ - $ -
Intergovernmental 319,674 237,325 - 604,946
Charges for services 155,394 - - -
Licenses, permits and impact fees 174,986 - - -
Interest and rent 50,806 - 11 114
Other 69,174 - - -
Total revenues 2,502,192 237,325 11 605,060
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 387,734 - - -
Public safety 1,653,156 - - -
Public works 191,205 - - -
Streets - 69,532 - -
Planning and development 130,072 - - 571,627
Parks and recreation 246,956 - - -
Day care - - - -
Capital outlay 37,794 - - -
Debt service:
Principal 11,103 - - -
Interest and other fiscal charges - 559 - -
Total expenditures 2,658,020 70,091 - 571,627
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (155,828) 167,234 11 33,433
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 59,804 - _ .
Transfers out (79,699) - - -
Total other financing sources (uses) (19,805) - - -
Net change in fund balances (175,633) 167,234 11 33,433
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year 1,899,949 286,196 71,020 58,651
Fund balances (deficit), end of year $ 1724316 $ 453430 $ 71031 § 92,084

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS
JUNE 30, 2018
(Continued)
Other Total
Governmental Governmental
Day Care Streets Funds Funds
REVENUES
Taxes $ -3 -9 400,910 $ 2,133,068
Intergovernmental 1,162,873 79,105 595,889 2,999,812
Charges for services 7,078 - - 162,472
Licenses, permits and impact fees - - 57,272 232,258
Interest and rent - - - 50,931
Other - - 175 69,349
Total revenues 1,169,851 79,105 1,054,246 5,647,890
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government - - - 387,734
Public safety - - 250,249 1,803,405
Public works - - 1,280 192,485
Streets - 25,393 405,005 - 499,930
Planning and development - - 50,589 752,288
Parks and recreation - - 20,780 267,736
Day care 1,189,977 - - 1,159,977
Capital outlay - 250 - 38,044
Debt service:
Principal - - 68,815 79,918
Interest and other fiscal charges - - 66,435 66,994
Total expenditures 1,159,977 25,643 863,153 5,348,511
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures 9,974 53,462 191,093 299,379
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 66,684 - 13,005 139,593
Transfers out - - - (79,699)
Total other financing sources (uses) 66,694 - 13,005 59,894
Net change in fund balances 76,668 53,462 204,098 359,273
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year - (69,822) 1,257,478 3,503,472
Fund balances (deficit), end of year 3 76,668 $ (16,360) $ 1461576 $ 3,862,745

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY CF CRANGE COVE
RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN
FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Changes in fund balance - total governmental funds $ 359,273

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. However, in the
statement of activities, the costs of these assets are allocated over their estimated
useful lives and reporied as depreciation expense. In the current period, these
amounts are:
Depreciation expense (358,583)

The issuance of long-term debt provides current financial resources to
governmental funds; while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt
consumes the current financial resources of governmental funds. Neither
transaction, however, has any effect on net position. Also, governmental funds
report the effect of issuance costs, discounts, and similar items when debt is first
issued, whereas these amounts are deferred and amortized in the statement of
activities. This amount is the net effect of these differences in the treatment of long-
term debt and related items.
Repayment of the principai of long-term debt 68,815

Accrued interest payable on long-term debt is reported in the government-wide
statement of activities, but does not require the use of current financial resources.
This amount represents the change in accrued interest payable not reported in
governmental funds. ' 1,148

Changes to net pension liability and pension related deferred outflows and inflows
of resources do not require the use of current financial resources and, therefore,
are not reported as expenditures in governmental funds. 289,563

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds. (1,951)

The distribution of housing loans and comresponding payments that were
recognized in the governmental funds are not recognized in the statement of
activities. 451,292

Compensated absences reporied in the statement of activities do not require the
use of current financial resources and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures

in the funds. {15,164)
Change in net position of governmental activities 3 794,393

The noties to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

ASSETS

Current assets:
Cash and investments
Cash with fiscal agent - restricted
Accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Interest receivable

Total current assets

Noncurrent assets:
Property, plant and equipment (net of
allowances for depreciation)

Total noncurrent assets
Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources from pensions

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Accrued interest
Deposits
Compensated absences
Due to other funds
Current portion of long-term debt

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Long-term debt
Net pension liability

Total noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources for pensions

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Disposal Total
$ - $ 578801 $ 132570 $ 711,371
10,763 - - 10,763
319,274 170,757 78,937 568,968
178,705 - - 178,705
222 1,026 119 1,367
508,964 750,584 211,626 1,471,174
8,538,786 9,255,698 - 17,794,484
8,538,786 9,255,698 - 17,794,484
9,047,750 10,006,282 211,626 19,265,658
102,836 100,683 - 203,519
90,161 67,975 42,440 200,576
12,228 - - 12,228
39,712 - - 39,712
23,775 17,122 - 40,897
493,266 - - 493,266
67,120 - - 67,120
726,262 85,097 42 440 853,799
1,206,085 - - 1,206,085
279,834 277,420 - 557,254
1,485,918 277,420 - 1,763,339
2,212,181 362,517 42 440 2,617,138
43,097 39,419 - 82,516
7,265,581 9,255,698 - 16,521,279
10,763 - - 10,763
(381,036) 449,331 169,186 237,481
$ 6,895308 $ 9,705,029 $ 169,186 § 16,769,523

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN FUND NET POSITION
PROPRIETARY FUNDS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Disposali Total
Operating revenues
Charges for services $ 1,422,799 $ 827,123 $ 634,937 $ 2,884,859
Connection fees 2,503 - - 2,503
Total operating revenue 1,425,302 827,123 634,937 2,887,362
Operating expenses
Contractual services and utilities 565,291 418,559 542,045 1,525,895
Personnel 590,567 562,852 - 1,153,419
Supplies and materials 302,040 66,804 5,001 373,845
Depreciation expense 448,311 461,448 - 909,759
Bad debt expense 20,609 10,888 7,388 38,885
Total operating expenses 1,026,818 1,520,551 554,434 4,001,803
Operating income (loss) (501,516) (693,428) 80,503 (1,114,441)
Noncperating revenues (expenses)
Intergovernmental 317,809 - 5,000 322,809
Interest income - 268 - 268
Interest expense (49,031) - (177) (49,208)
Developmental fees 9,127 17,987 - 27,114
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) 277,905 18,255 4,823 300,983
Net income (loss) before transfers (223,611) {675,173) 85,326 (813,458)
Operating transfers in (out) - - (59,894) (59,894)
Changes in net position (223,611) (675,173) 25,432 (873,352)
Net position, beginning of year 7,118,919 10,380,202 143,754 17,642,875
Net position, end of year $ 6,895308 $ 9,705,029 $ 169,186 $ 16,769,523

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

PROPRIETARY FUNDS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users
Payments to suppliers
Payments for employees

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Payments from developers
Noncapital grants and contributions received
Paymenits received (paid to) other funds
Transfer (to)/from other funds

Net cash provided {used) by noncapital
financing activities

Capital and related financing activities:
Capital grants and contributions received
Principal paid on long-term debt
Interest paid on long-term debt

Net cash provided (used) by financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities:
Interest received

Net cash provided (used) by investing activities
Net increase {decrease) in cash
Cash, beginning of year

Cash, end of year

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) fo net cash

provide (used) by operating activities:

Operating income (loss)

Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss)
to net cash provided (used) by operating aclivities:

Depreciation

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable
(Increase) decrease in deferred outflows of resources

Increase (decrease) in accounts payabie
and accrued liabilities
Increase (decrease) in customer deposits

Increase (decrease) in compensated absences

Increase (decrease) in net pension liability

Increase (decrease) in deferred inflows of resources

Net cash provided (used) by operating activities

Business-Type Activities - Enterprise Funds

Water Sewer Disposal Total

$ 1,234,115 $ 729,997 $ 621,943 § 2,586,055
(941,428) (438,849) (504,608) (1,884,883)
(519,861) (462,136) - (981,997)
(227 174) (170,988) 117,337 (280,825)

9,127 17,987 - 27,114

- - 5,000 5,000

52,574 - - 52,574
- - (59,894) (58,894)

61,701 17,987 {54,894) 24,794

292,325 - - 292,325
(65,004) - - (65,004)
(50,868) - (177) (51,045)

176,453 - (177) 176,276

217y 1,052 (119) 716

(217) 1,052 (119) 716
10,763 (151,949) 62,147 (79,039)

- 730,750 70,423 801,173

578,801 $ 132,570 $§ 722,134

3 10,763 $

$ (501,516) $

(693,428) $ 80,503 § (1,114,441)

448,311 461,448 - 909,759
(170,578) (86,238) (5,606)  (262,422)
(59,831) (67,897) - (127,728)
(74,863) 46,514 42,440 14,001
766 - - 766

(1,636) (2,798) - (4,434)
127,399 161,208 - 288,607
4,774 10,203 - 14,977

$ (227174) $ (170,988) $ 117.337 $ (280,825)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
STATEMENT CF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND — SUCCESSOR AGENCY
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 358,046
Cash and investments with fiscal agents 392,267
Interest receivable 642
Note receivable 200,000
Total assets 950,955
LIABILITIES
Accounts payable 47
Interest payable 65,889
Bond payable 4,273,900
Total liabilities 4 339,836
NET POSITION
Held in trust for other governments $ (3,388,881)

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
STATEMENT OF CHANGES FIDUCIARY NET POSITION
PRIVATE PURPOSE TRUST FUND -SUCCESSOR AGENCY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Additions
Property taxes $ 457,948
Investment eamning and other 3,578
Total additions 461,526
Deductions
Administrative costs 33,462
Interest and fiscal agency expenses of former redevelopment agency 160,303
Total deductions 193,765
Change in net position 267,761
Net position, beginning of year (3,656,642)
Net position, end of year $ (3,388,881

The notes to the basic financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY CF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The financial statements of the City of Orange Cove, California (the City) have been prepared in conformity with
generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) as applied to govemmental entities. The Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for governmental accounting and

financial reporting principles.

These financial statements present the government and its component units, entities for which the City is
considered to be financially accountable. Blended component units, although legally separate entities are, in
substance, part of the government’s operations and data from these units are combined with data of the primary
government. Each blended component unit has a June 30 year-end. The City has no component units to
report. The following sections further describe the significant policies of the City.

Reporting Entity

The City was incorporated as a general law city in 1948. The City operates under a Council-Manager form of
government. The City’s major operations include public safety, public works, sewer, disposal, parks and
recreation, streets, planning and community development, and general administrative services.

Basis of Presentation - Fund Accounting

Government-Wide Financial Statements — The statement of net position and the statement of activities display
information about the primary government (the City) and its component units. These statements include the
financial activities of the overall government, except for fiduciary activities. Eliminations have been made to
minimize the double-counting of internal activities. These statements distinguish between the governmental and
business-type activities of the Cily. Governmental activiies generally are financed through taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, and other non-exchange transactions. Business-type activities are financed in
whole or in part by fees charged o external parties.

The Statement of Activities presents a comparison between direct expenses and program revenues for each
different identifiable activity of the City’s business-type activities and for each function of the City’s governmental
activities. Direct expenses are those that are specifically associated with a program or function and, therefore,
are included in the program expense reported for individual functions. Certain indirect costs, which cannot be
identified and broken down, are included in the program expense reported for individual functions or activities.
Program revenues include: 1) fines, fees, and charges paid by the recipients of goods and services offered by
the programs and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not classified as program revenues, including all
taxes, are presented instead as general revenues.

Certain eliminations have been made as prescribed by GASB No. 34 in regards to interfund activities. All
internal balances in the statement of net position have been eliminated except those represeniing balances
between governmental activities and business-type activities, which are presented as internal balances and
eliminated in the total primary government column. In the statement of activities, those transactions between
governmental and business-type activities have not been eliminated. The following interfund activities have
been eliminated: due from/due to other funds, advances from/advances to other funds, and interfund transfers
in/transfers out.

Net position is restricted when constraints placed on them are either externally imposed or are imposed by
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. Internally imposed designations of resources are not presented
as restricted net position. When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, generally it is
the City’s policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30,2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (Continued)

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — The fund financial statements provide information about the
City’s funds. Separate statements for each fund category — governmental, proprietary and fiduciary — are
presented. The emphasis of fund financial statements is on major governmental and enterprise funds, each
displayed in a separate column. All remaining governmental and enterprise funds are aggregated and reported
as nonmajor funds. An accompanying schedule is presented to reconcile and explain the differences in funds
and changes in fund balances as presented in these statements of net position and changes in net position
presented in the government-wide financial statements.

Proprietary fund operating revenues, such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions
associated with the principal activity of the fund. Exchange transactions are those in which each party receives
and gives up essentially equal values. Nonoperating revenues, such as subsidiaries and investment earnings,
result from non-exchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses are those expenses that are
essential to the primary operations of the fund. All other expenses are reported as nonoperating expenses.

The City reports the following major governmental funds:

General Fund — The General Fund is the general operating fund or the City. ltis used for all financial resources
except those required legally, or by sound financial management to be accounted for in another fund.
Generally, the General Fund is used to account for traditionat governmental services of the City, such as police
protection and general adminisirative services.

Local Transportation Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for transportation funds received
from the State of California for related transportation projects and maintenance costs.

Low-Moderate Hotising Asset Special Revenue Fund — This fund accounts for the former Orange Cove
Redevelopment Agency’s affordable housing assets following its dissolution on January 31, 2012.

Housing Grant Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for grant revenues and expenditures
related to housing assistance loans for low income individuals.

Daycare Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for grant revenues and expenditures related to
the operation of the Julia A. Lopez Child Development Center.

Streets Special Revenue Fund — This fund is used to account for grant funds received from the State of
California and Department of Transportation for related transportation projects and maintenance costs.

Enterprise fund financial statements include a statement of net position, statement of revenues, expenses and
changes in net position, and a statement of cash flows for each major enterprise fund and nonmajor fund.

The City has three major enterprise funds, the Water, Sewer and Disposal Fund, which are used to account for
operations that are financed and operated in @ manner similar to private business enterprises. In an enterprise
fund, the intent of the City Council is that costs (expenses, including depreciation) of providing services to the
general public, on a continuing basis, be financed or recovered primarily through user charges.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Basis of Presentation — Fund Accounting (Continued)
The City reports the following three major enterprise funds:
o The Water Fund is used to account for financial activity of the water utility system.
e The Sewer Fundis used to account for the financial activity of the sewer utility system.
o The Disposal Fund is used to account for the financial activity of the disposal utility system.

The City's fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the benefit of parties outside the
government. The fund’s activities are reported in a separate statement of fiduciary net position and a statement
of changes in fiduciary net position. The City uses a private purpose frust fund to account for activities and
changes in fiduciary net position of the Successor Agency. This fund is custodial in nature and does not involve
measurement of results of operations. Accordingly, it presents only a statement of fiduciary net position and
does not present a statement of changes in fiduciary net position.

Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the government-wide statements because the resources of those funds are
not available to support the City’s own programs. Fiduciary funds are presented on an economic resources
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting, similar to the government-wide financial statements.

The City reports the following fiduciary fund:

e Private-Purpose Trust Fund — The Private Purpose Trust Fund accounts for assets held by the City as
trustee for the Successor Agency.

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting

Government-Wide, Proprietary and Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements — The government-wide, proprietary
and fiduciary fund financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement focus. The
government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements are reported using the accrual basis of accounting.
Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded at the time liabilities are incurred, regardless
of when the related cash flows take place. Nonexchange transactions, in which the City gives (or receives)
value without directly receiving (or giving) equal value in exchange, include property and sales taxes, grants,
entitlements and donations. On an accrual basis, revenue from property taxes is recognized in the fiscal year
for which the taxes are levied. Revenues from sales taxes are recognized when the underlying transaction
takes place. Revenues from grants, entitlements and donations are recognized in the fiscal year in which all
eligibility requirements have been satisfied.

Governmental Fund Financial Statements — Governmental funds are reported using current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the modified basis of accounting,
revenues are recognized when measurable and available. Property and sales taxes, interest, certain state and
federal grants, and charges for services are accrued when their receipt occurs within sixty days after the end of
the accounting period so as to be both measurable and avaiiable. Expenditures are generally recorded when a
liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures
related to claims and judgments and compensated absences, are recorded only when payment is due. General
capital assets acquisitions are reporied as expenditures in governmental funds. Proceeds of general long-term
debt and capital leases are reported as other financing sources.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting (Continued)

The City applies all applicable GASB pronouncements (including all NCGA Statements and Interpretations
currently in effect), as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, unless
those pronouncements conflict with or contradict GASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards
Board (FASB) Statements and Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting
Research Bulletins (ARB) of the Committee on Accounting Procedure. In addition, the City applies all
acceptable FASB Statements and Interpretations issued after November 30, 1989, except those that conflict
with or contradict GASB pronouncements to its business-type activities.

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating revenues,
such as charges for services, result from exchange transactions associated with the principal activity of each
fund. Nonoperating revenues, such as interest income, state and federal grants, and subsidies, usually result
from nonexchange transactions or ancillary activities. Operating expenses include costs for providing services
and delivering goods such as administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All other expenses
not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating expenses.

Assets, Liabilities and Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents — Cash and cash equivalents represent the City’s cash bank accounts, including,
but not limited to, certificates of deposit, money market funds and cash management pools for reporting
purposes in the statement of cash flows. Additionally, investments with maturities of three months or less when
purchased are included as cash equivalents in the statement of cash flows.

The City maintains a cash and investment pool that is available for use by all funds. Interest earnings as a
result of this pooling are distributed to the appropriate funds based on month-end cash balances in each fund.

Investments of the pool include only those investments authorized by the California Government Code such as,
United States Treasury securities, agencies guaranteed by the United States Government, registered state
warrants, and other investments. Investments primarily consist of deposits in the State of California Local
Agency Investment Fund. Invesiments are recorded at fair market value. Fair value is based upon quoted
market prices.

Accounts Receivable — Billed, but unpaid, services provided to individuals or non-governmental entities are
recorded as accounts receivable. The proprietary funds include a year-end accrual for services through the end
of the fiscal year which have not yet been billed. Accounts receivable are reported net of an allowance for
uncollectible.

Property Tax Calendar — Fresno County is responsible for the assessment, collection and apportionment of
property taxes for all taxing jurisdictions. Property taxes are levied in equal installments on November 1 and
February 1. They become delinquent on December 10 and April 10, respectively. The lien date is January 1 of
each year. Properly taxes are accounted for in the General Fund. Property tax revenues are recognized when
they become measurable and available to finance current liabilifes. The City considers property taxes as
available if they are collected within 60 days after the year-end. Property taxes on the unsecured roil are due on
July 1 and become delinquent if unpaid on August 31. However, unsecured property taxes are not susceptible
to year-end accrual.

The City is permitted by Article XIIA of the State of California Constitution (known as Proposition 13) to levy a
maximum tax of $1.00 per $100 of full cash value.

Due From/To Other Funds — ltems classified as due from/to other funds represent short-term lending/ borrowing
transactions between funds. This classification also includes the current portion of an advance to or from
another fund.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

Advances From/To Other Funds — This classification represenis noncurrent portions of any long-term
lending/borrowing transactions between funds. This amount will be equally offset by a reserve of fund balance
which indicates that it does not represent available financial resources and, therefore, is not available for
appropriation. The current portion of any interfund long-term loan (advance) is included as an interfund

receivable/payable.

Capital Assets — Capital outlays are recorded as expenditures of the general, special revenue, and capital
projects funds, and capitalized assets in the government-wide financial statements to the extent the City’s

capitalization threshold is met.

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment, and infrasiructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges,
sidewalks, and similar items) are reported in the applicable governmental business-type activities column in the
Government-Wide Financial Statements. Capital assets are defined by the government as assets with and
initial individual cost of more than $5,000 and an estimated useful life in excess of one year. Such assets are
recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are
recorded at estimated fair market value at the date of donation.

The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the asset or materially extend
assets lives are not capitalized. Betterments and major improvements which significantly increase values,
change capacities or extend useful lives are capitalized. Upon sale or retirement of fixed assets, the cost and
related accumulated depreciation are removed from the respective accounts and any resulting gain or loss is
included in the results of operations.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed.

Property, plant and equipment of the primary government, as well as the component units, are depreciated
using the straight line method over the following estimated useful lives: .

Buildings and improvements 10-50 years
Plant system 20-40 years
Machinery and equipment 5-10 years
Infrastructure 40 years

Compensated Absences — Accumulated unpaid vacation benefits, sick pay, and compensatory time benefits are
accrued as a liability as the benefits are eamed. The entire compensated absence liability is reported on the
government-wide financial statements as long-term debt. For governmental funds, the current portion of unpaid
compensated absences is recognized upon the occurrence of relevant events such as employee resignations
and retirements that occur prior to year-end that have not yet been paid with expendable available financial
resources. These amounts are reported in the fund from which employees who have accumulated leave are
paid. Vested leave is included in proprietary funds and is recorded as an expense and liability as the benefits
accrue.

Sick leave is accumulated at 12 days per year for full-time regular employees. Vacation is accumulated at 12
days per year for full-time regular employees. Vacation is accumulated at 12 days per year for full-time regufar
employees with less than five years of service to a maximum of 25 days per year for full-time employees with
over 20 years of service with no limit on accrual of unused hours. Upon employment termination, unused sick
leave is paid out at 5% to 25% depending on years of service, with a maximum payout of $2,500. These
amounts are included as liabilities in the government-wide and enterprise fund financial statements.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

Interest Payable — In the government-wide financial statements, interest payable of long-term debt is recognized
as the liability is incurred for governmental fund-types and proprietary fund-types. In the fund financial
statements, proprietary fund-types recognize the interest payable when the liability is incurred.

Unearned Revenue — Uneamed revenue is that for which asset recognition criteria have been met, but for which
revenue recognition criteria have not been met. The City typically records unearned revenue related to
uncollected outstanding, performing loans and intergovernmental revenues (primary grants and subventions)
received by not earned (qualifying expenditures not yet incurred).

Unavailable Revenue - In the fund financial statements, unavailable revenue is recorded when transactions
have not yet met the revenue recognition criteria based on the modified accrual basis of accounting. The City
records unavailable revenue for fransactions for which revenues have been earned, but for which funds are not
available to meet current financial obligations.

Long-term Obligations — In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund-types in the fund
financial statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable
governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprietary fund-type statement of net position. Debt
principal payments of both governmental and business-type activities are reported as decreases in the balance
of the liability on the statement of net position. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as insurance costs, are
deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective interest method. Bonds payable are
reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond issuance costs are expensed in the year the
bond was issued.

In the fund financial statements, however, debt principal payments of governmental funds are recognized as
expenditures when paid. Governmental fund-types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as well as bond
issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as other financing
sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing sources while discounts on debt
issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt
proceeds received, are reported as debt service expenditures.

Pension Plan — All full-ime City employees are members of the State of California Public Employees’
Retirement System. The City’s policy is to fund all pension costs accrued; such as costs to be funded are
determined annually as of July 1 by the System’s actuary. See Note 10 for further discussion.

For purposes of measuring the net position liability, deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to pensions and pension expense, information about the fiduciary net position of the City’s
Pension Plan and additions to/deductions from the City’s Pension Plan’s fiduciary net position have been
determined on the same basis as they are reported by the City’s Pension Plan. For this purpose, benefit
payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when due and payable in accordance
with the benefit terms. :

Investments are reported at fair value.

Encumbrances — The City does not use encumbrance accounting.

Budgetary and Budgetary Accounting — Budgets are adopted annually for the general fund, special revenue
funds, capital funds, debt service funds, and enterprise funds. Formal budgetary integration is employed as a
management control device during the year for these funds. The annual budgets are prepared on the basis of
accounting utilized by the fund.

Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund level. The City Manager is authorized

to make budget transfers between accounts within any fund. All revisions must be reported to the City Council.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

Assets, Liabilities and Equity (Continued)

Use of Estimates — The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect
the reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

Net Position — In the government-wide financial statermnents, net position is classified in the following categories:

Net investment in capital assets — This category groups all capital assets, including infrastructure, into
one component of net position. Accumulated depreciation and the outstanding balances of debt that are
attributable to the acquisition, construction or im provement of these assets reduce this category.

Restricted net position — This category presents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors,
contributors or laws or regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by [aw through
constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Unrestricted nef position — This category presents the net position of assets that do not meet the definition
of “net investment in capital assets” or “restricted net position”.

When both restricted and unrestricted net position are available, restricted resources are depleted before the
unrestricted resources are used.

Fund Balances

The governmental fund financial statements present fund balances based on classifications that comprise a
hierarchy that is based primarily to which the City is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for
which amounts in the respective governmental funds can be spent. The classifications used in the
governmental fund financial statements are as follows:

Nonspendable — This classification includes amounts that cannot be spent because they are either (a) not
in spendable form or (b) are legally or contractually required to be maintained intact.

Restricted — This classification includes amounts for which constraints have been placed on the use of the
resources either (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through a debt covenant), grantors,
contributors, or laws or regulations of other govermnments, or (b) imposed by law through constitutional
provisions or enabling legislation.

Committed — This classification includes amounts that can be used only for specific purposes pursuant to
constraints imposed by formal action of the City Council. These amounts cannot be used for any other
purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking the same type of action
(ordinance or resolution) that was employed when the funds were initially committee. This classification
also includes contractual obligations to the extent that existing resources have been specifically committed
for use in satisfying those contractual requirements. ‘

Assigned — This classification includes amounts that are constrained by the City’s intent to be used for a
specific purpose but are neither restricted nor committed. This intent can be expressed by the City Council
or through the City Council delegating this responsibility to the Finance Director through the budgetary
process. This classification also includes the remaining positive fund balance for all governmental funds
except for the general fund.

Unassigned ~ This classification is the residual classification for the general fund and represents fund
balance that has not been assigned to other funds and that has not been restricted, committed or assigned
to specific purposes within the General Fund. In other governmental funds it includes any negative residual
amounts that may exist as a result of expenditures incurred for specific purposes in excess of amounts
restricted, committed or assigned to those purposes.

The City would typically use restricted fund balances first, followed by committed resources, and then assigned
resources, as appropriate opportunities arise, but reserves the right to selectively spend unassigned resources
first to defer the use of these other classified funds.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TC THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

California law authorizes the City to invest in obligations of the United States Treasury, agencies,
instrumentalities, certificate of deposit or time deposits in banks and savings and loan associations which are
insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation,

In accordance with applicable sections of the California Government Code and the Orange Cove Municipal
Code, the City prepares and legally adopts an annual balanced budget on a basis consistent with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America. Annual appropriated budgets are adopted for the
General Fund, specific Special Revenue Funds, and specific Capital Projects Funds. Budget plans are adopted
for Proprietary Funds. A proposed budget is presented to the City Council during May of each year for review.
The Council holds public hearings and may add to, subtract from, or change appropriations within the revenues
and reserves estimate as available. Expenditures may not legally exceed budgeted appropriations at the fund
level. Supplementary appropriations which alter the total expenditures of any fund, or expenditures in excess of
total budgeted fund appropriations, must be approved by the City Council.

Alt annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end to the extent they have not been expended or encumbered.

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS

The City pools all if its cash and investments except those funds required to be held by bond trustee or outside
fiscal agents under the provisions of bond indentures. Interest earned on pooled cash is aliocated to the various
funds on average cash balances. Interest income from cash investments held by bond trustee is credited

directly to the related funds.

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 are classified in the accompanying financial statements as follows:

Statement of Net Position:

Cash and investmentis $ 2,876,865

Cash and investments - restricted 66,694

Cash and investments with fiscal agent 10,763
Fiduciary Funds:

Cash and investments 358,046

Cash and investments with fiscal agent 392,267

Total cash and investments $ 3,704,635

Cash and investments as of June 30, 2018 consist of the following:

Cash on hand and in bank $ 1,884,770
Investments 1,819,865
Total cash and investments $ 3,704,635
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NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Fair Value Measurements

The framework for measuring fair value provides a fair value hierarchy that categorizes the inputs to valuation
techniques used to measure fair value into three levels. The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to
unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets and liabilities (Level 1) and the lowest priority to
unobservable inputs (Level 3). The three levels of the fair value hierarchy are described as follows:

Level 1: Inputs to the valuation methodology are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets or liabilities in
active markets that a govemment can access at the measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs to valuation methodology include inputs — other than quoted prices included within Level 1 —
that are observable for an asset or liability, either directly or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs to the valuation methodology are unobservable and significant to the fair value measurements.
The asset or liability's fair value measurement level within a fair value hierarchy is based on the lowest level of
any input that is significant to the fair value measurement. Valuation techniques used need to maximize the use
of observable inputs and minimize the use of unobservable inputs.

Following is a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets measured at fair value.

Investments by fair value level Fair Value Level 2
Debt securities:
U.S. Treasury Obligations $ 10,763 $ 10,763
U.S. Government Obligations 392,267 392,267
Total debt securities 403,030 $ 403,030

Unclassified Investments
LAIF 1,416,835

Total investments $ 1,819,865

LAIF is based on the City’s pro-rata share of the fair value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (Level 2
input).
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NOTE 3 ~ CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments Authorized by the California Gevernment Cods and the City’s Investment Policy

The table below identifies the investment types that are authorized for the City by the California Government
Code (or the City’s investments policy, where more restrictive). The table also identifies certain provisions of the
California Government Code (or the City’s investment policy where more restrictive) that address interest rate
risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk. The City’s investment policy does not contain any specific
provisions intended to limit the City's exposure to interest rate risk, credit risk, and concentration of credit risk.
This table does not address investments of debt proceeds held by bond trustee that are governed by the
provisions of debt agreements of the City, rather than the general provisions of the California Government Code

or the City’s investment Policy.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage  Investmentin
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One Issuer
L ocal Agency Bonds 5years None None
U.S. Treasury Obligations 5 years None None
U.S. Agency Securities 5 years None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days 40% 30%
Commercial Paper 270 days 25% 10%
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit 5 years 30% None
Medium-Term Notes 5 years 30% None
Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A 20% 10%
Mortgage Pass-Through Securities 5 years 20% None
County Pooled Investment Funds N/A None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None

Investments Authorized by Debt Agreements

Investments of debt proceeds by bond trustee are governed by provisions of the debt agreements, rather than
the general provisions of the Califomia Government Code of the City’s investment policy. The table below
identifies the investment types that are authorized for investments held by the bond trustee. The table also
identifies certain provisions of these debt agreements that address interest rate risk, and concentration of credit

risk.

Maximum Maximum
Maximum Percentage  Investmentin
Authorized Investment Type Maturity of Portfolio One Issuer
U.S. Treasury Obligations None None None
U.S. Bank Securiiies None None None
Banker's Acceptances 180 days Necne None
Commercial Paper 270 days None None
Money Market Mutual Funds N/A None None
Investment Coniracts None None None
Certificates of Deposits 1 year None None
Repurchase Agreements 30 days None None
Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF) N/A None None
Municipal Bonds None None None

29




CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Disclosures Relating to Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in market interest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an
investment. Generally, the longer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to
changes in market interest rates. The City manages its exposure to interest rate risk by investing funds in liquid,
short-term investments which can be converted to cash when necessary to meet disbursement requirements.
As of June 30, 2018 the City had the following investments by maturity:

Investment Type Amount Maturity Date
Local Agency Investment Fund $ .1,416,835 N/A
Held by Bond Trustee:
U.S. Treasury Obligations 10,763 N/A
U.S. Government Obligations 392,267 N/A
Total $ 1,819,865

Disclesures Relating to Credit Risk

Generally, credit risk is the risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the holder of the
investment. This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating
organization. Presented below is the minimum rating required (where applicable) by the California Government
Code, the City’s investment policy, or debt agreements, and the actual rating as of year-end for each investment

type.
Rating as of Year-End

Maximum
Investment Type Amount Legal Rating Not Rated
Local Agency Investment Fund $ 1,416,835 N/A $ 1,416,835
Held by Bond Trustes:
U.S. Treasury Obligations 10,763 N/A 10,763
U.S. Government Obligations 392,267 N/A 392,267
Total $ 1,819,865 $ 1,819,865

Concentration of Credit Risk

The investment policy of the City contains no limitations on the amount that can be invested in any on issuer
beyond that stipulated by the California Government Code. The City does not have any investments in any one
issuer (other than U.S. Treasury securities, mutual funds, and external investment pools) that represent 5% or

more of total City investments.
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NOTE 3 — CASH AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial institution, a
government will not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover collateral securities that are in
possession of an outside party. The Califomia Government Code and the City's investment policy do not
contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for deposits, other than
the following provisions for deposits: The California Government Code requires that a financial institution
secure deposits made by the state or local government units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral
pool held by a depository regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market
value of the pledged securities in the collateral pool must equal at least 110% of the total amount deposited by
public agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure City deposits by pledging first trust
deed mortgage notes having a value of 150% of the secured public deposits. As of June 30, 2018, the City’s
balance of $403,028 was exposed to custodial credit risk because it was uninsured and collateralized with
securities held by the pledging financial institution’s trust department or agent, but not in the name of the City.

The custodial risk for investments is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty to a transaction, a
governmental will not be able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in
possession of another party. The California Government Code and the City’s investment policy do not contain
legal policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit risk for investments. With respect to
investments, custodial credit risk generally applies only to direct investments in marketable securities. Custodial
credit risk does not apply to a local government’s indirect investment in securities through the use of mutual
funds or government investment pools such as the Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF).

Investment in State Investment Pool

The City is a voluntary participant in the LAIF that is regulated by the California Government Code under the
oversight of the Treasurer of the State of California. The fair value of the City’s investments in this pool is
reported in the accompanying financial statements at amounts based upon the City’s pro-rata share of the fair
value provided by LAIF for the entire LAIF portfolio (in relation to the amortized cost of that portfolio). The
balance available for withdrawal is based on the accounting records maintained for the LAIF, which are
recorded on an amortized cost basis.

NOTE 4 — INTERFUND ACTIVITIES

Due From/To Other Funds

Interfund receivables and payables consist of shori-term loans resulting from regular transactions. These loans
are expected to be repaid as soon as the borrowing fund has cash, and carry an interest rate equal to the rate
earned on pooled cash. Individual fund interfund payables balances as of June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Due From Due To
General Fund $ 761,426 $ -
Water Fund - 493,260
Street Projects Fund - 16,360
Gas Tax Fund - 238,914
Soccer Grant Fund - 9,989
Bureau of Reclamation Fund - 1,280
BSCC Grant Fund - 1,617

$ 761,426 $ 761,426
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NOTE 4 — INTERFUND ACTIVITIES (Continued)

Operating Transfers

With the City Council approval, resources may be transferred from one City fund to another. The purpose of the
majority of transfers is fo reimburse a fund that has made expenditures on behalf of another fund. Transfers
within fund types have been eliminated with the government-wide financial statements.

Transfers in and out for the year ended June 30, 2018 consisted of the following:

Transfers Out Transfers In
USDA
General Day Care Kitchen Grant
Fund Fund Fund Total
General fund $ - 3 66,694 $ 13,005 § 79,699
Disposal fund 59,894 - - 59,894
Total $ 59,804 $ 66,694 3 13,005 $ 139,593

s Transfer out from the Disposal Fund to the General Fund in the amount of $59,894 was to transfer

franchise taxes.
e Transfer out from the General Fund to the Day Care fund of $66,694 was to cover the ending reserve

cash balance.
e Transfer out from the General Fund to the USDA Kitchen Grant fund in the amount of $13,005 was to

cover community center kitchen expenses which are reimbursed by the USDA.

NOTE 5 — NOTES RECEIVABLE

Notes receivable at June 30, 2018 are as follows:

Housing Grants Note — The City has loaned $1,290,000 to forty-three families at 1.00% interest. The loan
proceeds were used by these low and moderate income families to purchase homes. The loans are payable in
thirty years or when property ownership is transferred. The proceeds for the loans are provided through a State
HOME Grant. As of June 30, 2018, the notes receivable balance was $1,289,000. Deferred interest receivable
on these notes was $81,680 as of June 30, 2018.

The City loaned four loans totaling $239,957 at 0% interest. The loan proceeds were used by low and moderate
income famifies to purchase homes. The loans are payable in thirty to forty-five years or when property
ownership is transferred. The proceeds for the loans are provided through a Federal HOME Grant.

As of June 30, 2018, the City loaned forty-nine loans totaling $1,275,819 at 0% interest. The loan proceeds
were used by these low and moderate income families to purchase homes. The loans are payable in thirty
years or when property ownership is transferred. The proceeds for the loans are provided through a CalHOME

Grant.

Low and Moderate Housing Notes — A note receivable is due from Citrus Gardens '98 LP, to assist in the
construction of a low income apariment complex. The note incurs interest at three percent and requires annual
payments of 50% of residual receipts (revenues less debt service, property tax and maintenance and operating
expenses). To date, there have been no payments on the note. The note is due in full in November 2029 with
interest. The balance due on the note at June 30, 2018 was $275,000. Deferred interest receivable on the note
at June 30, 2018 was $161,237.
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NOTE 5 — NOTES RECEIVABLE (Continued)

Valley Small Business Development Note - A note receivable is due from Valley Small Business Development
Corporation (“Valley”) in which funds were used to assist Valley in retaining control of a community medical
clinic (Orchard Medical Center) in the City of Orange Cove, and enable the property to again be used as a
financially viable medical clinic. The note is due if and when Valley sells the Property. The first $200,000 of net
appreciation would be due to the City in addition to 25% of any excess appreciation. The balance due on the
note at June 30, 2018 was $200,000.

NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS

Governmental Activifies
Capital assets activity of the governmental activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Additions Retirements June 30, 2018

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land $ 1 ,302,41 1 $ - $ - $ 1 1302741 1

Total capital assets, not being depreciated 1,302,411 - - 1,302,411

Capital assets, being depreciated:

Buildings and improvements 10,207,276 - - 10,207,276
Machinery and equipment 1,612,287 - - 1,612,287
Total capital assets, being depreciated 11,819,563 - - 11,819,563

Less accumulated depreciation for:

Buildings and improvements (3,005,396) (308,457) - (3,313,853)
Machinery and equipment (1,289,321) (50,1286) - (1,339,447)
Total accumulated depreciation (4,294,717) (358,583) - (4,653,300)
Total capital assets being depreciated, net 7,524,846 (358,583) - 7,166,263
Govemmental acﬁvities capital assets, net $ 8827257 $ (358,583) § - $ 8,468,674

Depreciation expense was charged to governmental functions as foilows:

Governmental Activities:

General government 95,916
Public safety 28,923
Public works 4,424
Parks and recreation 96,933
Streets 131,387

$ 358583
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NOTE 6 — CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Business-Type Activities

Capital assets activity of the business-type activities for the year ended June 30, 2018 was as follows:

Capital assets, not being depreciated:
Land
Construction in progress

Total capital assets, not being depreciated

Capital assets, being depreciated:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment

Total capital assets, being depreciated

Less accumulated depreciation for:
Buildings and improvements
Machinery and equipment
Total accumulated depreciation

Total capital assets being depreciated

Business-type activities capital assets, net

Balance Balance
July 1, 2017 Additions Retirements  Adjusiments June 30, 2018
$ 769,772 -3 -8 - § 769,772
3,566,769 - (2,475,374) - 1,081,385
4,336,541 - (2,475,374) - 1,861,167
23,846,869 63,636 - 5,148 23,915,653
532,436 2,411,736 - - 2,944,172
24,379,305 2,475,372 - 5,148 26,859,825
(8,394,223} (630,913) - (1,253,677) (10,278,813)
(1,617,378) (278,848) - 1,248,529 (647,695)
(10,011,601) (909,759) - (5,148) (10,926,508)
14,367,704 1,565,613 - - 15,933,317
$ 18,704,245 $ 1,565,613 $ (2,475,374) $ - $17,794,484

Depreciation expense was charged to business-type functions of the business-type activities as follows:

Business-Type Activities:
Water $
Sewer

$

448,311
461,448

. 909,759
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT

The City generally incurs long-term debt to finance projects or purchase assets which will have useful lives
equal to or greater than the related debt.

In governmental fund-types, debt discounts and issuance costs are recognized in the current period. Debt
discounts incurred in proprietary funds are deferred and amortized over the term of the debt using the “bonds
outstanding” method, which approximates the effective interest method. The City’s debt activities are
summarized below and discussed in detail thereafter.

Balance Balance Current
July 1, 2017 Additions Retirements  June 30, 2018 Portion
Governmental Activities:
Special Assessment Bonds $ 1,181,000 $ - 8 (67,000) $ 1,114,000 $ 70,000
PG&E Street Lights Loan 16,156 - (1,818) 14,340 2,178
Total Governmental Activities Debt $ 1,197,156 $ - 3 (68,816) $ 1,128,340 $ 72,178
Business-Type Activities:
Bonds Payable:
1995 Water System Improvement Project $ 575,864 3 -3 (21,500) 3% 554,364 3 22,500
2005 COP Water Loan 366,100 - (6,800) 359,300 7,100
Notes Payable:
California Department of Water Resources 356,245 - (36,704) 359,541 37,520
Total Business-Type Activities Debt $ 1,338,208 $ - $ (65,004) § 1,273,205 $ 67,120
Compensated Absences:
Governmental Activities 3 113,845 % 15,164 3 - $ 129,009 $ 129,008
Business-Type Activities $ 45331 § - $ (4434) § 40,897 § 40,897

Long-term debt at June 30, 2018 was comprised if the following individual issues:

Governmental Activities

Special Assessment Bond Payable

In March 1990, the City issued $2,450,684 in special assessment bonds with interest rates at 5.00% payable
semi-annually. The proceeds were used to finance a sewer plant expansion project. These bonds are payable
from assessments on the property owners within the City. The principal payments range from $21,000 to
$120,000 and are due annually through FY2030. At June 30, 2018 bonds payable outstanding amounts to
$1,114,000.

Annual debt service requirements for Special Assessment Bonds Payable are as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 3$ 70,000 $ 53,750 $ 123,750
2020 74,000 50,150 124,150
2021 78,000 48,350 124,350
2022 81,000 42,375 123,375
2023 85,000 38,225 123,225
2024-2028 381,000 121,825 502,825
2029-2030 345,000 11,825 356,825

$ 1114000 $§ 364,500 $ 1,478,500
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEET(Continued)

Governmental Activities (Continued)

PG&E Street Lights Loan

In 2015, the City financed $21,238 from Pacific Gas & Electric for the LED Street Lights project. The principal
payments of $182 are due monthly through FY2025. At June 30, 2018 the note payabie outstanding amounts to
$14,340.

Annual debt service requirements for the PG&E Street Lights Loan are as follows:

Years Ending June 30, Principal Interest Total

2018 $ 2,178 $ - $ 2,178

2020 2,178 - 2,178

2021 2,178 - 2,178

2022 2,178 - 2,178

2023 2178 - - 2,178
2024-2025 3,450 - 3,450

$ 14,340 $ - 3 14,340

Business-Type Activities

1895 Orange Cove Pubiic Financing Authority Revenues Bond Payable

In 1995, the City issued $907,650 in revenue bonds with interest rates at 4.5% payable semi-annually through
2035. The proceeds were used to finance a Water System Improvement Project. The City signed a lease
agreement with the Authority with loan payments plus interest due semiannually. The principal payments range
from $8,650 to $47,000 are due annually through FY2038. At June 30, 2018, the bonds payable outstanding
amounts to $554,364.

Annual debt service requirements for the 1895 Orange Cove Public Financing Authority Revenue Bonds
Payable are as follows:

For the Years Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 3 22,500 $ 26,471 $ 438,971
2020 23,500 25,436 48,936
2021 24,500 24,356 48,856
2022 25,500 23,231 48,731
2023 - 26,500 22,061 48,561

2024-2028 152,500 90,754 243,254
2029-2033 189,500 52,481 241,981
2034-2036 89,864 9,293 99,157

$ 554,364 $ 274,083 $ 828,447
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM DEBT (Continued)

Business-Type Activities (Continued)

2005 Certificate of Participation Water Loan

In July 2005, the City borrowed $425,000 from the U.S. Government to facilitate water plant improvements. The
interest rate is at 4.125% payable semi-annually. The principal payments in amounts from $4,300 to $21,000
are due annually through FY2046. At June 30, 2018, the bonds payable outstanding amount to $359,300.

Annual debt service to requirements for the 2005 Certificate of Participation Water Loan are as foliows:

For the Years Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 7,100 $ 14,675 $ 21,775
2020 7,300 14,378 21,678
2021 7,600 14,070 21,670
2022 8,000 13,748 21,749
2023 8,300 13,412 21,712

2024-2028 486,800 61,533 108,333
2029-2033 57,400 50,820 108,220
2034-2038 70,200 37,711 107,911
2038-2043 86,000 21,656 107,656
2044-2046 60,600 3,816 64,416

$ 359,300 $ 245820 $§ 605,120

Department of Water Resources Note Payable

In 1996 the City borrowed $943,280 from the California Depariment of Water Resources to finance water
system improvements. The interest rate is 2.955% payable semi-annually. The principal payments in amounts
ranging from $9,900 to $23,280 are due annually through FY2027. At June 30, 2018, the note payable
outstanding amounts o $359,541.

Annual debt service requirements for the Department of Water Resources note payable are as follows:

For the Years Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 37,520 $ 10625 $ 48,145
2020 38,346 9,799 48,145
2021 39,515 8,630 48,145
2022 40,673 7,472 48,145
2023 41,884 6,261 48,145

2024-2027 161,603 11,355 172,958

$ 359,541 $ 54,142 § 413,683
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NOTE 8 — DEFERRED QUTFLOWS/INFLOWS OF RESOURCES

In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred outflows
of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a
consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and thus, will not be recognized as
an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. The City has pension related items that qualify to be
reported in deferred outflows of resources. The pension related deferred outflows of resources are described in

detail in Note 10.

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for deferred
inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an
acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
inflow of resources (revenue) until that time.

The City has one type of item which arises only under a modified basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting
as deferred inflows of resources. Accordingly, that item, unavailable revenues, is reported only in the
governmental funds balance sheet. The City reports $3,274,743 as unavailable revenue in the governmental

funds:

Low-
Moderate Local
Housing Housing Transportation
Fund Asset Fund Total
Unavailable revenues:
Grants $ -8 -3 46,721 3 46,721
Program income 2,710,105 - - 2,710,105
Intrerest income 81,680 161,237 - 242,917
Loan repayments - 275,000 ~ 275,000

$ 2,791,785 $§ 436,237 $ 48,721 § 3,274,743

NOTE 9 — DEFICIT FUND BALANCES

The following is a summary of deficit fund balances and net position as of June 30, 2018:

The deficit fund balance of $16,360 in the Streets Fund is due to operating expenditures exceeding
operating revenues in the current year.

The deficit fund balance of $243,459 in the Gas Tax Fund is due to operating expenditures exceeding
operating revenues in the current year.

The deficit fund balance of $9,989 in the Soccer Grant Fund is due fo expenditures in the current year
without a funding source.

The deficit fund balance of $1,280 in the Bureau of Reclamation Fund is due to expenditures in the current
year without a funding source.

The deficit fund balance of $1,617 in the BSCC grant is due to expenditures in the current year without a
funding source.

The deficit fund balance of $3,388,881 in the Successor Agency Fund is due to operating expenditures
exceeding operating revenues, the bond payable will be paid down with future tax increments.
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NOTE 10 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Plan Descripticn — All qualified permanent and probationary employees are eligible to participate in the Public
Agency Cost Sharing Multiple-Employer Plan (Plan) administered by the California Public Employees’
Retirement System (CalPERS). The Plan consists of individual rate plans (benefit tiers) within a safety risk pool
(police and fire) and a miscellaneous risk pool (all other). Plan assets may be used to pay benefits for any
employer rate plan of the safety and miscellaneous pools. Accordingly, rate plans within the safety or
miscellaneous pools are not separate plans under GASB Statement No. 68. Individual employers may sponsor
more than one rate plan in the miscellaneous or safety risk pools. The City of Orange Cove (City) sponsors four
rate plans (two miscellaneous and two safety). Benefit provisions under the Plan are established by State
statute and City resolution. CalPERS issues publicly available reports that include a full description of the
pension plan regarding benefit provisions, assumptions and membership information that can be found on the

CalPERS website.

Benefits Provided — CalPERS provides service retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments and death benefits to plan members, who must be public employees and beneficiaries. Benefits
are based on years of credited service, equal to one year of full ime employment. Members with five years of
total service are eligible to retire at age 50 with statutorily reduced benefits. All members are eligible for non-
duty disability benefits after 10 years of service. The death benefit is one of the following: the Basic Death
Benefit, the 1957 Survivor Benefit, or the Optional Settlement 2W Death Benefit. The cost of living adjustments
for the Plan are applied as specified by the Public Employees’ Retirement Law.

The rate plan provisions and benefits in effect at June 30, 2018 are summarized as follows:

Miscellaneous Classic

Safety Classic

Prior to Prior to
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 60; 2% at 55;
Benefit vesting schedule 5years 5 years
Benefit payments monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 50-63 50-55
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible compensation 1.092% to 2.418% 1.426% to 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 7% 7%
Required employer contribution rates 7.200% 15.928%

Miscellaneous PEPRA Safety PEPRA

Prior to Prior to
Hire date January 1, 2013 January 1, 2013
Benefit formula 2% at 62; 2% at 57
Benefit vesting schedule 5 years 5 years
Benefits payable monthly for life monthly for life
Retirement age 52-67 50-57
Monthly benefits, as a % of eligible conpensation 1.0% t0 2.5% 1.426% to 2.0%
Required employee contribution rates 6.25% 9.50%
Required employer contribution rates 6.533% 11.990%
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NOTE 10 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

A. General Information about the Pension Plan

Beginning in fiscal year 2016, CalPERS collects employer contributions for the Plan as a percentage of payroll
for the normal cost portion as noted in the rates above and as a dollar amount for confributions toward the
unfunded liability and side fund, if applicable. The dollar amounts are billed on a monthly basis. The City’s
required contribution for the unfunded liability was $28,038 for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2018.

Contributions — Section 20814(c) of the California Public Employees’ Retirement Law requires that the
employer contribution rates for all public employers be determined on an annual basis by the actuary and shall
be effective on the July 1 following notice of a change in the rate. Funding contributions for the Plan are
determined annually on an actuarial basis as of June 30 by CalPERS. The actuarially determined rate is the
estimated amount necessary to finance the costs of benefits earmned by employees during the year, with an
additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. The City is required to contribute the difference
between the actuarially determined rate and the contribution rate of employees.

The City’s contributions to the plan recognized as a part of pension expense for the year ended June 30, 2018
were $186,076.

B. Pension Liability, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions

As of June 30, 2018, the City reported net position liability for it proportionate shares of the net pension liability
of the Plan of $334,714.

The City’s net pension liability for the Plan is measured as the proporticnate share of the net pension liability.
The net pension liability of the Plan is measured as of June 30, 2017, and the total pension liability for the Plan
used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016, rolled
forward to June 30, 2017, using standard update procedures. The City’s proportion of the net pension liability
was based on a projection of the City’s long-term share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the
projected contributions of all participating employers, actuarially determined. The City’s proportionate share of
the net pension liability for the Plan as of June 30, 2016 and 2017 was as follows:

Proportion - June 30, 2016 0.0019%
Proportion - June 30, 2017 0.0034%
Change - increase (decrease) 0.0015%

For the year ended June 30, 2018, the City recognized pension expense of $81,332. At June 30, 2018, the City
reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following
sources:

Deferred Qutflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Pension contributions subsequent to the measurement date $ 195,039 $ -
Changes of assumptions 314,426 24,012
Difference between expected and actual experience 977 22,749
Net differences between projected and actual earings on plan
investments 70,496 -
Change in employer's proportion 75,734 53,493
Differences between the employer's actual contributions and the
employer's proportionate share of contributions - 106,245
Total $ 656,672 3 206,499
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NOTE 10 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

B. Pension Liability, Pension Expenses, and Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources Related to
Pensions (Continued)

$195,039 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to contributions subsequent to the measurement
date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2018. Other
amounts reported as deferred outflow of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be
recognized as pension expense as follows:

Years Ending

June 30,
2019 3 4578
2020 180,144
2021 112,127
2022 (41,714)
2023 -

C. Actuariai Assumptions

The total pension liabilities in the June 30, 2016 actuarial valuations were determined using the following
actuarial assumptions:

Valuation Date June 30, 2016
Measurement Date June 30, 2017
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal Cost Method
Actuarial Assumptions:

Discount Rate 7.15%

Inflation 2.75%

Payroli Growth 3.00%

Projected Salary Increase 3.30% to 14.20%"

Investment Rate of Return 7.50%%

Mortality Derived using CalPERS' Membership

Data for ali Funds ©

N
2
(&)

Depending on age, service and type of employment
Net pension plan investment expenses, including inflation
The mortality table was developed based on CalPERS specific data.

The table includes 20 years of mortality improvements using Society of
Actuaries Scale BB

The underlying mortality assumptions and all other actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2014 valuation
were based on the results of January 2014 actuarial experience study for the period 1997 to 2011. Further
details of the Experiences Study can be found on the CalPERS website.

Change of Assumptions —In 2017, the accounting discount rate was reduced from 7.65 percent to 7.15
percent.
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NOTE 10 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

D. Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.15 percent. To determine whether the
municipal bond rate should be used in the calculation of the discount rate for each plan, CalPERS stress tested
plans that would most likely result in a discount rate that would be different from the actuarially assumed
discount rate. The tests revealed the assets would not run out. Therefore, the current 7.15 percent discount
rate is appropriate, and the use of the municipal bond rate calculation is not deemed necessary. The long-term
expected discount rate of 7.15 percent is applied to all plans in the Public Employees’ Retirement Fund (PERF).
The cash flows used in the testing were developed assuming that both members and employers will make their
required coniributions on time and as scheduled in all future years. The stress test results are presented in a
detailed report called “GASB Crossover Testing Report” that can be obtained at CalPERS website under the

GASB 68 section.

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building-block
method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of retum (expected returns, net of pension
plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class.

In determining the long-term expected rate of return, staff took into account both short-term and long-term
market retum expectations as well as the expected pension fund (PERF) cash flows. Taking into account
historical returns of all the Public Employees Retirement Funds’ asset classes (which includes the agent plan
and two cost-sharing plans or PERF A, B, and C funds), expected compound (geometric) refurns were
calculated over the short-term (first 10 years) and the long term (11-60 years) using a building-block approach.
Using the expected nominal returns for both short-term and long-term, the present value of benefits was
calculated for each PERF fund. The expecied rate of return was set by calculating the single equivalent
expected return that arrived at the same present value of benefits for cash flows as the one calculated using
both short-term and long-term returns. The expected rate of return was then set equal to the single equivalent
rate calculated above and rounded down to the nearest one quarter of one percent.

The table below reflects the long-term expected real rate of return by asset class. The rate of return was

calculated using the capital market assumptions applied to determine the discount rate and asset allocation.
The target allocation shown was adopted by the Board effective on July 1, 2014.

New Strategic Real Return ' Real Return 2

Asset Class Allocation Years 1-10 Years 11+
Global Equity 47.0% 4.90% 5.38%
Global Fixed Income 19.0% 0.80% 2.27%
inflation Sensitive 6.0% 0.60% 1.39%
Private Equity 12.0% 6.60% 6.63%
Real Estate 11.0% 2.80% 5.21%
Infrastructure and Forestland 3.0% 3.90% 5.36%
Liquidity 2.0% -0.40% -0.90%
Total 100%

' An expected inflation of 2.5% used for this period
2 An expected inflation of 3.0% used for this period
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NOTE 10 — DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN (Continued)

D. Discount Rate (Continued)

Sensitivity of the Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate—The
following presents the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability for the Plan, calculated using the
discount rate for the Plan, as well as what the City’s proportionate share of the net pension liability would be if it
were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower or 1-percentage point higher than the

current rate:

Discount Rate -1% Current Discount Rate Discount Rate +1%
6.15% ‘ 7.15% 8.15%
$ 1,371,706 $ 334,714 $ (521,446)

E. Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position

Detailed information about the Plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the separately issued CalPERS
financial reports.

F. Payable to the Pension Plan

The City did not have an outstanding amount of contributions due to the pension plan required for the year
ended June 30, 2018.

NOTE 11 — POST-RETIREMENT HEALTHCARE BENEFITS

The City provides no post-employment benefits to its employees. However, former employees may be
maintained on the City’s health insurance programs through the City’s consolidated Omnibus Budget
Reconciliation Act (COBRA) insurance continuation plan.

NOTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The City participates with other public entities in a joint venture under a joint powers agreement which
establishes the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority (CSJVRMA). The relationship between
the City and CSJVRMA is such that CSJVRMA is not a component unit of the City for financial reporting
purposes. :

The City is a member of the Central San Joaquin Valley Risk Management Authority, which is & joint powers
authority established under the provisions of California Government Code Section 6500, et. seq. The
CSJVRMA is comprised of 54 member cities, and is governed by a Board of Directors which meet three times
per year. The Board is comprised of one Board member and one alternate Board member appointed by each
member city. The day-to-day business is handled at a management firm under contract with the CSJVRMA.
The audited financial statements of the CSJVRMA are available at 1750 Creekside Oaks Drive, Suite 200,
Sacramento, CA 95833.
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CITY CF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 12 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The City purchases liability coverage through the CSJVRMA at a $10,000 self-insured retention. This risk
sharing pool covers the first $1 million of losses (CSJVRMA'’s retained limit). The CSJVRMA is a member of the
California Affiliated Risk Management Authorities {CARMA) for the purpose of obtaining excess coverage in a
risk sharing pool. CARMA provides coverage in excess of CSJVRMA's retained limit up to $29 million. As of
June 30, 2018, 54 cities participated in the CSJVRMA'’s liability program. The City also purchases workers’
compensation coverage through the CSJVRMA at a $10,000 self-insured retention. The risk sharing pool
covers the first $500,000 of losses {CSJVRMA'’s retained limit). The CSJVRMA is a member of the Local
Agency Workers’ Compensation Excess Joint Powers Authority (LAWCX) for excess workers’ compensation
coverage. LAWCX provides $4.5 million of coverage in excess of CSJVRMA'’s retained limit and participates in
the California State Association of Counties Excess Insurance Authority (CSAC-EIA) for coverage in excess of
$5 million up to statutory. As of June 30, 2014, 51 cities pariicipated in the CSJVRMA’s workers’ compensation

program.

For both liability and workers’ compensation coverage, expected claims are actuarially determined and
deposited with the CSJVRMA along with all estimated operating costs each program year. Each program year
is retrospectively adjusted five years following its conclusion, and any funds remaining in excess of the minimum
funding requirements established by the Board are returned to the member city.

The City also purchases various property coverage programs. Deductibles and limits per property type can be
obtained from the City Manager.

The latest audited financial information and the most current information available for CSJVRMA for fiscal year
ended June 30, 2018 is as follows:

Statement of Net Position

Current assets $ 34,817,411
Noncurrent asseis 75,417,222
Total assets 110,234,633
Current liabilities 19,167,859
Noncurrent liabilities 73,041,272
Total ligbilities 92,209,231
Total net position $ 18,025,402

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues $ 46,355,775
Operating expenses 46,619,021
Operating income (loss) (263,246)
Nonoperating income (loss) 314,077
Increase (decrease) in net position 50,831
Net position, beginning of year 17,974,571
Net position, end of year $ 18,025,402
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 13 — CONTINGENCIES

The City has received federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and audit by the federal
government. Although such audits could result in expenditure disallowances under grant terms, any required
reimbursements are not expected to be material.

NOTE 14 - JULIA A. LOPEZ DAY CARE

The City operates a full day care program funded by the State of California Department of Education. The City
was awarded the contract not to exceed $1,337,374 for child care reimbursements. The City subcontracts the
daily operation to Target 8 Advisory Council, a nonprofit organization that operates another day care program in
the City. The day care incurred adminisirative costs of $56,568, not to exceed 15% of the grant.

NOTE 15 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY

On December 29, 2011, the California Supreme Court upheld Assembly Bill 1X26 (“the BIll") that dissolved all
redevelopment agencies in the State of California. This action impacted the reporting entity of the City of
Chowchilla that previously had reported a redevelopment agency within the reporting entity of the City as a
blended component unit.

The Bill provides that upon dissolution of a redevelopment agency, either the city or another unit of local
government will agree to serve as the “successor agency” to hold the assets until they are distributed to other
units of state and local government. On January 10, 2012, the City Council elected to become the Successor
Agency for the former redevelopment agency in accordance with the Bill as part of City Resolution
Number 5-12.

After enactment of the law, which occurred on June 28, 2011, redevelopment agencies in the State of California
cannot enter into new projects, obligations or commitments. Subject to the control of a newly established
oversight board, remaining assets can only be used to pay enforceable obligations in existence at the date of
dissolution (including the completion of any unfinished projects that were subject to legally enforceable
contractual commitments.)

In future years, successor agencies will only be allocated revenue in the amount that is necessary to pay the
estimated annual installment payments on enforceable obligations of the former redevelopment agency until all
enforceable obligations of the prior redevelopment agency have been paid in full and all assets have been
liquidated.

The Bill directs the State Controller of the State of California to renew the propriety of any transfers of assets
between redevelopment agencies and other public bodies that occurred after January 1, 2011. If the public
body that received such fransfers is not contractually commitied to a third party for the expenditure of
encumbrance of those assets, the State Controller is required to order the available assets to be transferred to
the public body designated as the successor agency by the Bill.

Management believes, in consultation with legal counsel, that the obligations of the former redevelopment
agency due to the City are valid enforceable obligations payable by the successor agency trust under the
requirements of the Bill. The City’s position on this issue is not a position of settled law and there is
considerable uncertainty regarding this issue. It is reasonably possible that a legal determination may be made
at a later date by an appropriate judicial authority that would resolve this issue favorably to the City.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE 15 — SUCCESSOR AGENCY TRUST FOR ASSETS OF THE FORMER REDEVELOPMENT AGENCY
{Continued)

In accordance with the timeline set forth in the Bill (as modified by the California Supreme Court on December
29, 2011) all redevelopment agencies in the State of California were dissolved and ceased to operate as a legal

entity as of February 1, 2012.

After the date of dissolution, the assets and activities of the dissolved redevelopment agency are reported in a
fiduciary fund (private-purpose trust fund) in the financial statements of the City.

Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt reported in the Successor Agency Trust Fund as June 30, 2018 was comprised of the following
individual issue:

Orange Cove RDA Tax Refunding Bonds

The former Redevelopment Agency of the City of Orange Cove issued a tax allocation bond payable in the
annual installments ranging from $55,340 to $396,299 with interest payable semi-annually at a rate between
3.7% per annum. At June 30, 2018 the bond outstanding amounts to $4,273,900.

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for the Orange Cove RDA Tax Refunding Bonds are as follows:

For the Years Ending

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2019 $ 239,392 3 155,920 § 395,312
2020 249,311 146,970 396,281
2021 254,009 137,703 391,712
2022 263,596 128,216 391,812
2023 277,432 118,335 395,767

2024-2028 1,537,808 429,286 1,967,094
2029-2032 1,452,352 123,408 1,575,760

$ 4273900 $ 1239838 $ 5,513,738
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES iIN
FUND BALANCE - BUDGET TO ACTUAL
GENERAL FUND
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 393, 2018

Budgeted Amounts
Actual Variance
Original Final Amounts Final Budget
REVENUES
Taxes $ 1,460,860 $ 1,460,860 $ 1,732,158 $ 271,298
Intergovernmental 218,000 218,000 319,674 101,674
Charges for services 136,000 136,000 155,394 19,394
Licenses, permits and impact fees 169,304 189,304 174,986 5,682
Interest and rent 41,500 41,500 50,806 9,306
Other 54,500 54,500 69,174 14,674
Total revenues 2,080,164 2,080,164 2,502,192 422,028
EXPENDITURES
Current:
General government 493,210 493,210 387,734 105,476
Public safety 1,620,057 1,620,057 1,653,156 (33,099)
Public works 224,300 224,300 191,205 33,095
Planning and development 117,351 117,351 130,072 (12,721)
Parks and recreation 248,963 248,963 246,956 2,007
Capital outlay 38,000 38,000 37,794 206
Debt service:
Principal - - 11,103 (11,103)
Total expenditures 2,741,881 2,741,881 2,658,020 83,861
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (661,717) (661,717) (155,828) 505,889
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in 258,000 258,000 59,894 (198,106)
ransfers out - - (79,699) (79,699)
Total other financing sources (uses) 258,000 258,000 (19,805) (277,805)
Net change in fund balance (403,717} (403,717 (175,633) 228,084
Fund balances (deficit), beginning of year 1,899,949 1,899,949 1,899,949 -
Fund balances (deficit), end of year $ 1496232 $ 1496232 $ 1,724316 $ 228,084
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
NOTES TO THE REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION
JUNE 30, 2018

NOTE A - BUDGETARY INFORMATION

The City follows the following procedures annually in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the budgetary
comparison schedules:

1.

The City Manager submits to the City Council a proposed budget for the fiscal year commencing the
following July 1. The budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing them.

The City Council reviews the proposed budget at specially scheduled sessions, which are open to the
public. The Council also conducts a public hearing on the proposed budget to obtain comments from

interested persons.

Prior to July 1, the budget is legally adopted through passage of an ordinance. This budget is reported
as Original Budget in the budgetary comparison schedules.

During the fiscal year, changes to the adopted budget may be authorized as follows:

a. Items requiring City Council action — appropriation of fund balance revenues; transfers of
appropriations between funds; appropriation of any non-departmental revenue; new interfund loans
or advances; and creation of a new capital projects or increases to existing capital projects.

b. ltems delegated to the City Manager — transfers between departments within funds; appropriation of
unbudgeted departmental revenues; and approval of transfers which increase salary and benefit
appropriations.

c. ltems delegated to the department head — allocation of departmental appropriations fo line item
level.

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management tool for all funds. Annual budgets are
legally adopted and amended as required for the general, special revenue, and enterprise funds.
Project-length budgets are adopted for the capital projects funds. All budgets are prepared on a basis
consistent with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP), and budgetary comparisons for the
general and major special revenue funds are presented on that basis in the required supplementary
information. A debt service payment schedule for the debt service funds is also approved as part of the
budget process.

Budget amounts are reflected after all authorized amendments and revisions. This budget is reported
as the Final Budget in the budgetary comparison schedules.

For each legally adopted operating budget, expenditures may not exceed budgeted appropriations at
the activity level. The legal appropriation basis is at the level called “department”. A department for
legal appropriation purposes may be a single organization or an entire department having multiple
organizations within the same fund, or an entire fund.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICON (UNAUDITED)
COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF THE CITY’S
PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

2015 2016 2017 2018
Proportion of the net pension liability -0.0018% -0.0039% 0.0019% 0.0034%
Proportionate share of the net pension liability $ (112,285) $ (270,847) $ 161,985 § 334,714
Covered payroll $ 1,787,519 $1,782,750 $1,781,031  $ 1,693,061
Propertionate share of the net pension liability as
percentage of covered payroll -6.28% -15.19% 9.10% 19.77%
Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total
pension liability 102.08% 104.40% 97.55% 95.54%

NOTES TO THE SCHEDULE

Changes in Benefit Terms - None

Changes of Assumptions - The discount rate decreased from 7.65 percent to 7.15 percent.

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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CITY OF CRANGE COVE
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATICN (UNAUDITED)
COST-SHARING MULTIPLE-EMPLOYER DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLAN
SCHEDULE OF CONTRIBUTIONS
LAST 10 YEARS*
AS OF JUNE 30, 2018

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Actuarially required contribution (actuarially determined) $ 149,758 $ 158,678 $ 155,206 $ 186,076 $ 195,039

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined

contributions 149,758 158,678 155,206 186,076 195,039
Contribution deficiency (excess) 3 - % - 8 - 8 - 3 -
Covered payroll $1,787,519 $1,782,750 $1,781,031 $1,693,061 $1,640,504
Contributions as a psrcentage of covered payroli 8.38% 8.90% 8.71% 10.9%% 11.89%

*Schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years will be displayed as they become
available.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
JULIA A, LOPEZ CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER
BALANCE SHEET
JUNE 30, 2018

ASSETS
Cash
Restricted cash
Accounts receivable
Interest receivable

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Unearned revenue - reserve fund

Total liabilities

FUND BALANCES
Unreserved, undesignated

Total fund balances

Total liabilities and fund balances
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- City Subcontractor Memo
Portion Portion Total
$ 8,404 $ - $ 8,404
66,694 - 66,694
202,165 - 202,165
11 - 11
$ 277,274 % - % 277,274
$ 200,606 $ - § 200,606
200,606 - 200,606
76,668 - 76,668
76,668 - 76,668
$ 277274 § - § 277,274




CITY OF ORANGE COVE
JULIA A. LOPEZ CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2018

City Subcontractor Memo
Portion Portion Total
REVENUES AND SUPPORT
State apportionments - Child development program $ 26,268 $ 1,136,605 $ 1,162,873
Parent fees - certified - 7,078 7,078
Total revenues and support 26,268 1,143,683 1,169,951
EXPENSES
Salaries and wages 26,268 536,292 562,560
Employee benefits - 268,079 268,079
Food - 126,459 126,459
Materials and supplies - 25,946 25,946
Other supplies - 31,084 31,084
Travel and fraining - 2,801 2,801
Dues and memberships - 1,210 1,210
Rent - 4,890 4,890
Operations and housekeeping services - 61,560 61,560
Insurance - 9,924 9,924
Professional services - 61,999 61,999
Depreciation - 3,465 3,465
Total expenses 26,268 1,133,709 1,159,977
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures - 9,974 9,974
Other Financing Sources (Uses)
Transfers in 66,694 - 66,694
Total other financing sources (uses) 66,694 - 66,694
Net changes in fund balance 66,694 9,974 76,668
Fund balances, beginning of year - - -
Fund balances, end of year $ 66,694 $ 9,974 § 76,668
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
JULIA A. LOPEZ CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER
SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES BY STATE CATEGORY
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

State
Preschool
City Subcontractor Program
Portion Portion CSPP-7065

Expenditures

1000 Certified Personnel Salaries 3 - $ 148,327 $ 148,327
2000 Classified Personnel Salaries - 387,965 387,965
3000 Employee Benefits - 268,079 268,079
4000 Books and Supplies - 183,489 183,489
5000 Services and Other Operating Expenses 26,268 116,584 142,852
6000 Capital Outlay - 64,146 64,146
Total expenses claimed for reimbursement $ 26,268 $ 1,168,500 $ 1,194,858

NOTE: We have examined the claims filed for reimbursement and the original records supporting the
transactions recorded under the contract listed to an extent considered necessary to assure ourselves that the
amounts claimed by the contractor were eligible for reimbursement, reasonable, necessary, and adequately

supported, according to governing laws, regulations, and contract provisions.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
JULIA A. LOPEZ CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER
SCHEDULE OF REIMBURSABLE ADMINISTRATIVE COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

State
Preschool
Program
CSPP-7065
Expenses

City payroll expense $ 26,268
Accounting 25,800
Audit 4,500
Total expenses $ 56,568

The City is the prime contractor responsible for all adminisirative, fiscal, and program requirements of the CSPP
contract. The City has Target Eight as its subcontract operator for the CSPP contract. The City is the
contractor on record who is responsible for the quality and compliance with Title 5 regulations for the services.

Typically the prime contractor will incur some administrative and operating expenses for the oversight of its
subcontractor, which includes the following:

1.

City administrator, manager, and staff time (2.5% of the contract) to review, sign off, and authorize fiscal
reports, attendance reports, annual program self-evaluation, and capital purchases.

Budget and expenditures review, coordination of audits and provision of supporting documents.

Maintenance of accounting functions, location and review of documents, posting of transactions, and
year-end adjustments.

Supervising maintenance.

Regular site visits to the childcare facility. City staff time to support parents, Target Eight staff,
consultants, and other parties.

Staff time with EESD, EESD consultant, CDE audits office, fiscal analyst regarding contract,
compliance, audit, and licensing.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
JULIA A. LOPEZ CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER
COMBINING SCHEDULE OFRENOVATION AND REPAIR EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Julia Lopez
General
Child Care
Expenditures Under $7,500 Unit Cost:
None s -
Total R
Expenditures Over $7,500 Unit Cost With CDE Approval:
Surveillance equipment 16,975
Total 16,975
Expenditures Over $7,500 Unit Cost Without CDE Approval
None —
Total J——
Total Equipment Expenditures $ 16,975
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
JULIA A. LOPEZ CHILD DEVELOPMENT CENTER
SCHEDULE OF EQUIPMENT EXPENDITURES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

Julia Lopez
General
Child Care
Center
Unit Cost Under $10,000 ltem:
None $ -
Total -
Unit Cost Over $10,000 With CDE Approval:
Flooring 47,171
Total 47 171
Unit Cost Qver $10,000 Without CDE Approval:
None - -
Total . —
Total Renovation and Repair Expenditures $ 47,171
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PRICE PAIGE £: COMPANY

Accountancy Corporation

The Place to Be

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and City Council
City of Orange Cove, California

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States, the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-
type activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Orange Cove,
California (the City), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2018, and the related notes to the financial
statements, which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements, and have issued our report

thereon dated August 23, 2019.
Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the City’s internal controi over
financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances
for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the City’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the
effectiveness of the City’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or
employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct,
misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in
internal control such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial
statements will not be prevented, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in inteal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of intemal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph of this section
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or
significant deficiencies and therefore, material weaknesses or significant deficiencies may exist that have not
been identified. We did identify certain deficiencies in internal control, described in the accompanying schedule
of findings and questioned costs as items 2018-001 through 2018-007 that we consider to be material
weaknesses.

&77 Scotr Avenue
Clovis, CA 93812

e 559.295.9540
fax 559.299.2344

W DDCPas.Com
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Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free from material
misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, coniracts, and
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of
financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing

Standards.

The City’s Response to Findings

The City’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in the accompanying schedule of findings
and questioned costs. The City’s response was not subjected to auditing procedures applied in the audit of the
financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

Purpose of This Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and compliance and
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion of the effectiveness of the City’s intemal control or on
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards in considering the entity’s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not

suitable for any other purpose.

Clovis, California
August 23, 2019
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION | — SUMMARY OF AUDITOR’S RESULTS

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Type of auditor's report issued: Unmodified
Internal control over financial reporting:
Material weaknesses ideniified? X . yes no
Significant deficiencies identified -
not considered to be material weaknesses? yes X no
Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? yes X no

SECTION Il —- FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding 2018-001 Internal Control Over Financial Reporting {Material Weakness)

Condition: We have determined that processes utilized for closing and reporting of financial activity for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2018, were not effective, which contributed to the City’s unpreparedness for the
audit. We experienced continuing delays throughout the audit process due to the City’s inability to provide the
requested supporting documents in a timely manner and the inadequacy of supporting documents received.

Criteria: An effective internal control system and timely financial reporting provides reasonable assurance for
the safeguarding of assets, the reliability of financial information and compliance with laws and regulations.

Cause: The City’s policies and procedures for recording financial transactions were disrupted due to significant
inefficiencies in how the finance department staff performed their duties.

Effect: The City was not able to close its books and generate year-end reports in a timely manner. As a result,
during the performance of the financial statement audit for the year ended June 30, 2018, there were significant
delays in receiving the requested audit documents and various schedule received required further reconciliation

and adjusiment.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City close its books in a timely manner and have all accounts
reconciled and balanced to the general ledger, and a detailed review of all financial statements be conducted
prior to the start of the audit fieldwork. We also recommend that all reconciliations and detailed listings be

reviewed to ensure accuracy.

Management’s Respense: See client’s corrective action plan {attached).
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2018-002 Bank Reconciliation (Material Weakness)

Condition: Cash was not reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis. Bank statements accumulated
for several months to a year before they were reconciled to the appropriate general ledger accounts.

Criteria: Failure to recognize cash in a timely manner is a weakness in internal controls over a significant
account balance.

Cause: Failure on the part of the Finance Director to prioritize the cash reconciliation process.

Effect: By not reconciling the bank accounts to the general ledger on a monthly basis, errors or other problems
might not be recognized and resolved on a timely basis.

Recommendation: Timely preparation of complete and accurate bank reconciliations is key to maintaining
adequate internal control over cash. Bank reconciliations should be performed on all bank accounts in a timely
manner after month-end. The bank reconciliations should be formally approved. Any discrepancies should be
investigated and all errors and omissions should be posted to the general ledger.

Management’s Response: See client’s corrective action plan (attached).

Finding 2018-003 Reporiing of Capital Assets {(Material Weakness)

Condition: The City does not have a documented capital asset policy in place to ensure all capital assets are
identified and does not maintain the schedule of capital assets.

Criteria: Cities are required to adopt adequate internal controls to properly record, summarize, and report
accounting transactions, including those associated with the acquisition and disposition of capital assets, to
provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements are not materially misstated.

Cause: The City does not have adequate policies and procedures to ensure all capital assets are properly
identified and recorded.

Effect: Capital assets represent a significant account balance for the City and improper accounting could result
in a material misstatement of the financial statements.

Recommendation: We recommend the City establish internal control policies and procedures to provide
reasonable assurance that the following occurs on a routine basis:

¢ Prepare periodic reconciliation schedules of capital assets including construction in progress balances
to ensure that all amounts are properly recorded in the financial statements.
Capital asset inventory is performed at least annually.
Review detail schedules on an ongoing basis to ensure that balances recorded are capital in nature and
individual assets are properly classified on the capital asset detail schedules.

Management’s Response: See client’s corrective action plan (aitached).
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2018-004 Grant Accounting (Material Weakness)

Condition: The City’s grant management process operates in a decentralized format which has resulted in
ineffective oversight over grant administrators. The City experienced improper coding of cash receipts from
grant reimbursements and improper coding of grant expenditures.

Criteria: The City’s internal control system should be designed to ensure that the grant agreements, and other
similar documents are properly accounted for, recorded, and in compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Claims for reimbursements
should be filed in a timely manner, soon after the incurrence and payment of qualified rated expenditures, and
recorded in the proper fund.

Cause: There is a lack of communication between the grant administrators and the Finance Department in
regards to the grant activity. Finance department staffs are not properly trained on how to effectively keep track
of grant balances.

Effect: The City’s lack of grant accounting increases the likelihood of material misstatements in the financial
statements due to improper accounting of grant activity.

Recommendation; We recommend that the City establish a control system to ensure that amounts expended
are timely submitted for reimbursement, all required forms are completed and prepared in the format prescribed
by the grantor, and reimbursement packages are reviewed and approved by supervisory personnel, and the
staff is properly trained on how to account for grant activity in the general ledger.

Management’s Response: See client’s corrective action plan (attached).

Findina 2018-005 Loan Recsivables {Material Weakness)

Condition: The City does not have proper authorization schedules for outstanding loan balances to track
principal and interest payments on the loans receivable.

Criteria: The City’s intemal conirol system should be designed to ensure that the loans receivable are properly
accounted for and recorded.

Cause: The Finance Department did not account for loan payments accurately and the City does not have
policies on how to treat loans that are in default.

Effect: The City’s failure to track loans receivable accurately increases the likelihood that there may be
improper loan receivable balances and loans that are in default are not properly resolved.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City establish an internal control system for loans receivable and
maintain current amortization schedules for each loan to ensure that payments received are properly recorded.
In addition, the City should establish procedures to document proper treatment of loans that are in default.

Management’s Response: See client’s corrective action plan {attached).
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CITY OF ORANGE CGVE
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

SECTION Il — FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2018-006 General Ledger Coding of Deposits and Disbursements (Material Weakness)

Condition: The City does not have adequate controls in place to monitor that deposits and disbursements are
properly coded. Finance Department staff are not recording activity in the proper funds and general ledger

accounts.

Criteria: The City’s internal control system should be designed to ensure that deposits and disbursements are
coded in the proper general ledger accounts and in the correct funds.

Cause: The City’s policies and procedures for recording deposits and disbursements are not adequate to
monitor the coding process. Finance Depariment staff are not adequately trained to know which codes to use
for the deposits and disbursements, and management is not adequately reviewing and monitoring the process
1o ensure that deposits and disbursements are being properly recorded.

Effect: The City’s lack of monitoring the general ledger coding process for deposits and disbursements
increases the likelihood that deposits and disbursements are not recorded in the proper account and proper
fund and thus will reflect misstatements in the financial statements.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City train staff who are responsible for the coding process to be
proficient in where each deposit and disbursement should be coded. Management should review the deposits
and disbursements to ensure that they are properly coded.

Management’s Response: See client’s corrective action plan (attached).

Finding 2018-007 Council Member Fringe Benefits {Material Weakness)

Condition: The City’s policy for health insurance coverage for council members is not comprehensive enough
to ensure the plan is compliant with IRS regulations and does not properly address reimbursemenis to council
members for expenditures that are not typically covered by health insurance.

Criteria: The Internal Revenue Service requires that certain fringe benefits be taxed to council members unless
the law specifically excludes it.

Cause: The City’s policy for council member health insurance is not adequately designed to ensure it meets
with IRS laws.

Effect: The City is reimbursing council members for expenditures that are not typically covered by health
insurance and are providing benefits to themselves that are not available to all City employees. In addition, the
City is not treating these benefits as a taxable fringe benefit to the recipients as these benefits do not qualify for
an exclusion under current law.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City have a plan reviewed by the City’s insurance representative

and legal counsel to ensure the plan is in compliance with IRS law. Additionally, council members who received
the taxable fringe benefits should either receive a W-2 reporting these amounts as taxable wages or reimburse

the City for the amounts.

Management’s Response: See client’s corrective action plan {(attached).

SECTION lil - FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS

None noted.
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CITY OF CRANGE COVE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS

Finding 2017-0061 Internal Control Over Financia! Reporting (Material Weakness)

Condition: We have determined that processes utilized for closing and reporting of financial activity for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2017, were not effective, which contributed to the City’s unpreparedness for the
audit. We experienced continuing delays throughout the audit process due to the City’s inability to provide the
requested supporting documents in a timely manner and the inadequacy of supporting documents received.

Criteria: An effective internal control system and timely financial reporting provides reasonable assurance for
the safeguarding of assets, the reliability of financial information and compliance with laws and regulations.

Cause: The City’s policies and procedures for recording financial transactions were disrupted due to significant
inefficiencies in how the finance department staff performed their duties.

Effect: The City was not able to close its books and generate year-end reports in a timely manner. As a result,
during the performance of the financial statement audit for the year ended June 30, 2017, there were significant
delays in receiving the requested audit documents and various schedule received required further reconciliation

and adjustment.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City close its books in a timely manner and have all accounts
reconciled and balanced to the general ledger, and a detailed review of all financial statements be conducted
prior to the start of the audit fieldwork. We also recommend that all reconciliations and detailed listings be

reviewed to ensure accuracy.

Status: Not implemented.

Finding 2017-002 Bank Reconciliation {(Material Weakness)

Condition: Cash was not reconciled to the general ledger on a monthly basis. Bank statements accumulated
for several months to a year before they were reconciled to the appropriate general ledger accounts.

Criteria: Failure to recognize cash in a timely manner is a weakness in internal controls over a significant
account balance.

Cause: Failure on the part of the Finance Director to prioritize the cash reconciliation process.

Effect: By not reconciling the bank accounts to the general ledger on a monthly basis, errors or other problems
might not be recognized and resolved on a timely basis.

Recommendation: Timely preparation of complete and accurate bank reconciliations is key to maintaining
adequate internal control over cash. Bank reconciliations should be performed on all bank accounts in a timely
manner after month-end. The bank reconciliations should be formally approved. Any discrepancies should be
investigated and all errors and omissions should be posted to the general ledger.

Status: Not implemented.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2017-003 Reporting of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards (Material Weakness)

Condition: The City’s intemal controls over the compilation of the annual Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards did not identify all the federal expenditures required to prepare a complete Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards as of June 30, 2017.

Criteria: OMB Circular A-133 in Subpart C — states that the City shall:

a) Identify, in its accounts, all Federal awards received and expended in the Federal programs under
which they were received.

b) Prepare appropriate financial statements, including the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal
Awards, including notes that describe the significant accounting policies used in preparing the
schedule.

Cause: The departments responsible for overseeing the City’s federal grants are not communicating effectively
with the Finance Department regarding the total federal expenditures incurred during the year. The Finance
Department is responsible for preparing the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Effect: The City was not able to compile a complete and accurate Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards
for audit. As a result, additional audit procedures and auditor assistance was necessary to ensure the accuracy
and completeness of the City’s Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Recommendation: The Finance Department should work with all depariments to accumulate the data that is
necessary to compile the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards. We recommend that this compilation

take place at least quarterly. The Finance Department must coordinate with all departments to obtain the data
that is necessary to prepare an accurate and complete Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Status: Not implemented.

Finding 2017-005 Grant Accounting {(Material Weakness)

Condition: The City’s grant management process operates in a decentralized format which has resulted in
ineffective oversight over grant administrators. The City experienced improper coding of cash receipts from
grant reimbursements and improper coding of grant expenditures.

Criteria: The City’s internal control system should be designed to ensure that the grant agreements, and other
similar documents are property accounted for, recorded, and in compliance with requirements that could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. Claims for reimbursements
should be filed in a timely manner, soon after the incurrence and payment of qualified rated expenditures, and
recorded in the proper fund.

Cause: There is a lack of communication between the grant administrators and the Finance Department in
regards to the grant activity. Finance department staffs are not properly trained on how to effectively keep track
of grant balances.

Effect: The City's lack of grant accounting increases the likelihood of material misstatements in the financial
statementis due to improper accounting of grant activity.

Recommendaticn: We recommend that the City establish a control system to ensure that amounts expended
are timely submitted for reimbursement, all required forms are completed and prepared in the format prescribed

by the grantor, and reimbursement packages are reviewed and approved by supervisory personnel, and the
staff is properly trained on how to account for grant activity in the general ledger.

Status: Not implemented.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Continued)

Finding 2017-006 Loan Receivabies (Material Weakness)

Condition: The City does not have proper authorization schedules for outstanding loan balances to track
principal and interest payments on the loans receivable.

Criteria: The City’s internal control system should be designed to ensure that the loans receivable are properly
accounted for and recorded.

Cause: The Finance Department did not account for loan payments accurately and the City does not have
policies on how to treat loans that are in default.

Effect: The City's failure to track loans receivable accurately increases the likelihood that there may be
improper loan receivable balances and loans that are in default are not properly resolved.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City establish an internal control system for loans receivable and
maintain current amortization schedules for each loan to ensure that payments received are properly recorded.
In addition, the City should establish procedures to document proper treatment of loans that are in default.

Status: Not implemented.

Finding 2017-007 General Ledger Coding of Deposits and Disbursements {Material Weakness

Condition: The VCity does not have adequate controls in place to monitor that deposits and disbursements are
properly coded. Finance Department staff are not recording activity in the proper funds and general ledger
accounts.

Criteria: The City’s internal control system should be designed to ensure that deposits and disbursements are
coded in the proper general ledger accounts and in the correct funds.

Cause: The City’s policies and procedures for recording deposits and disbursements are not adequate to
monitor the coding process. Finance Department staff are not adequately trained to know which codes to use
for the deposits and disbursements, and management is not adequately reviewing and monitoring the process
to ensure that deposits and disbursements are being properly recorded.

Effect: The City’s lack of monitoring the general ledger coding process for deposits and disbursements
increases the likelihood that deposits and disbursements are not recorded in the proper account and proper
fund and thus will reflect misstatements in the financial statements. '

Recommendation: We recommend that the City train staff who are responsible for the coding process to be
proficient in where each deposit and disbursement should be coded. Management should review the deposits
and disbursements to ensure that they are properly coded.

Status: Not implemented.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
SUMMARY SCHEDULE OF PRIOR AUDIT FINDINGS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS (Confinued)

Finding 2017-008 Council Member Fringe Benefits (Material Weakness)

Condition: The City’s policy for health insurance coverage for council members is not comprehensive enough
to ensure the plan is compliant with IRS regulations and does not properly address reimbursements to council
members for expenditures that are not typically covered by health insurance.

Criteria: The Internal Revenue Service requires that certain fringe benefits be taxed to council members unless
the law specifically excludes it.

Cause: The City’s policy for council member health insurance is not adequately designed to ensure it meets
with IRS laws.

Effect: The City is reimbursing council members for expenditures that are not typically covered by health
insurance and are providing benefits to themselves that are not available to all City employees. In addition, the
City is not treating these benefits as a taxable fringe benefit to the recipients as these benefits do not qualify for

an exclusion under current law.

Recommendation: We recommend that the City have a plan reviewed by the City’s insurance representative
and legal counsel to ensure the plan is in compliance with IRS law. Additionally, council members who received
the taxable fringe benefits should either receive a W-2 reporting these amounts as taxable wages or reimburse

the City for the amounts.

Status: Not implemented.

FEDERAL AWARDS FINDINGS

None noted.
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE

CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018

CITY OF ORANGE COVE
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
YEAR ENDED JUNE 38, 2018

N S

FEEYs Bt 24N

Planned Corrective
Action

Anticipated
Completion
Date

Responsible
Contact Parson

-16 audit was dug
int place 28 wel

City Cou
Year Erx

reviewsd and aporoved the new
Closing Poficy. Lastly, alt reconciiiations and acoounting
schedules related to the fiscal vesr end closing arg
prepared by the City's finance staff under Bwe closz
watch of the Finance Direclor who also reviews and
ancial ransacionss

fschedulesireports.

frnpismented
for FY 2018

Ruely Hernandez.

;
Finance Director

Cinv's new Finance Director arhed in July
2018, it was discoversd that the Tast bank statement that
was reconciied was July 2017 {Almost cne year behind}.
Under the direciion of the City's new Finance Direglor,
the system of reconcifing the bank statement changad
from Using an excel format fo using the MOMS bank
reconciiiation program. This resuited in gelling the bank
reconciiations completed on 3 Hmsly maoner and
reconciling the bank stetemedts fo the general ledger
{including investigating 2l errors and omissions). Having
to go back one {1} year and reconciie all bank statement
was fime consuming but was done. The Cily now is
reconciling the bank recondiistions to the general ledger
on & monihly basis. The Finance Director reviews and
annroves 2f hank recongitiations.

Implemented
for FY 2018

Rudy Hemandes,
Finance Direclor

On August 8. 2018, the City Councl sdopted &
resolution approving the Fixed Assels Policy. Cliy steff
helleves that Hhis Fized Assst Policy addresses the
concermns raised by the City's prior audifor. The City has
giso impiemented 3 new accounBing procedurs where afl
fxad zsset schedules are econciled o the general
tedger. it shiould be further roted Hat the Cliy's new
suditing Firm Price, Paige and Company mviewed and
anproved the new Fixed Assets Policy.

impiemented
for BY 2018

Rudy Hemandez,
Finance Direcior

2018004

Cn February 27, 2019, the Cly Councl adopted 2
resoiution approving the Grants Management Policy.
The Grants Management Policy makes reference o the
rales and responsibiiiies of afl Ty Depariments
inciuding the City Councll. in addiion, on February 12,
2018, the City hired an administraiive assistent o assist
ir administering, accounting, and preparing any repords
tComplience! related to Dounly, Sigte and Fedaral

Rudy Hemandez,
Finance Direclor
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CITY OF ORANGE COVE
CORRECTIVE ACTION PLAN
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2018
(Continued)
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City Council Meeting Date: _ August 28, 2019

Agenda Item No.

CITY OF ORANGE COVE
REPORT TO THE CITY COUNCIL

Mayor and City Council Members

From: Rudy Hernandez, Interim City Manager
Subject: Small Business Resource Workshop
Attachment:

The City of Orange Cove has been contacted by the Fresno State Small Business University (SBU)
regarding the scheduling of a Small Business Resource Workshop in Orange Cove. The SBU is in the
process of setting up numerous workshops in rural communities around the Central Valley.

The SBU partners with approximately seven or eight other business resources to answer questions
local businesses may have. The workshop consists of a one-hour roundtable type discussion and then
one-on-one sessions with the local business in their particular areas of concern. The workshop can
provide technical assistance to approximately 20 small businesses.

Workshop partners include the Small Business Administration, Mexican consulate, SBDC, Access
Plus Capital, Opportunity Fund, Bluetech Valley, EDA, and Feed the Hunger. They also would like to
have a staff member present to answer questions regarding City services.

The workshop in Orange Cove has been scheduled for November 12, 2019 from 6:00 p.m. to 8:00 p.m.
and will be held at the Victor P. Lopez Community Center.

Prepared by: __ Melanie A. Carter Approved by:
REVIEWED BY:
City Manager Finance City Attorney
TYPE OF ITEM: |
Consent Department Report Matter Initiated by Council
Info Item Successor Agency Other
X Action Item Public Hearing Continued to:

COUNCIL ACTION: APPROVED DENIED NO ACTION




CITY OF ORANGE COVE
FRATERNIZATION POLICY

Our Fraternization policy outlines our guidelines on employees forming personal relationships
with each other.

We don’t want to place undue restrictions on employees dating colleagues, as we acknowledge
that freedom of choosing one’s partner is an individual’s right. But, without rules and guidelines,
romantic relationships between colleagues may negatively impact our workplace. This policy
will set restrictions to maintain workplace conduct and order.

Friendships forming between employees are also included in this policy. Friendships allow for a
more collaborative environment, but they might also occasionally create cliques and
fragmentation inside departments.

This policy does not restrict participating in labor unions or other labor or civil rights
organizations.

Scope
This policy applies to all our employees regardless of gender or sexual orientation.
For the purposes of this policy, “dating” includes consensual romantic relationships and sexual

relations. Non-consensual relationships constitute sexual harassment and we prohibit them
explicitly.

Policy elements

Dating in the workplace

Dating colleagues may cause problems if not handled correctly. Examples of common concerns
are:

« Colleagues who date might spend a large portion of their work time talking or meeting
with each other instead of completing their duties.

« Fights or breakups between couples might affect their ability to collaborate or maintain
peace in the workplace.

« Employees who dated supervisors might sue for sexual harassment if they are terminated.
« Employees who date executives might unfairly benefit from favoritism.

So, we advise our employees to:




Consider any possible conflict of interest before they enter into a relationship with a
coworker.

Inform HR when they enter into a romantic or intimate relationship with a colleague.
Keep discussions of personal issues out of the workplace.
Seek counseling from HR or specialized employees (e.g. psychologist) if needed.

Maintain professionalism despite the status of the relationship and seek advice from their
managers or HR to solve any issues.

When serious problems arise between couples, they can arrange a meeting with HR or their
manager to find a solution. Example of a possible solution is to consult with and transfer an
employee to a different division, without loss of benefits or compensation.

Unacceptable and acceptable behavior

When two employees are in a relationship with one another, they should behave appropriately in
the workplace. We define unacceptable behavior as any action that:

Offends our people.
Disrupts or hinders our operations.
Distracts our employees from their duties.

Decreases our employees’ individual performance.

Examples of acceptable behavior for employees are:

Passing by their partner’s office to talk to them for non-work reasons for a short time.
Displaying affection discreetly and infrequently while on company premises.

Discussing their plans as a couple during breaks or lunch hours (with or without
colleagues.)

Coming to and leaving from work together.

Examples of unacceptable behavior for employees are:

Arguing in the workplace during or after working hours.

Kissing or touching inappropriately in front of colleagues.




« Exchanging an excessive number of instant messages ot calls unrelated to their work
during working hours.

« Making their colleagues uncomfortable by talking or boasting about the relationship
during working hours.

Employees who exhibit unacceptable behavior will face progressive discipline, up to and
including termination in cases of repeated violations. HR is responsible for determining
appropriate penalties.

Employees are also obliged to behave appropriately towards their colleagues who date each
other. We prohibit victimization and hostility towards employees for any reason. This includes
sexual jokes, gossip and improper comments. Employees who witness this kind of behavior
should report it to HR.

Employees are obliged to follow our Code of Conduct at all times.

Dating managers

To avoid accusations of favoritism, abuse of authority and sexual harassment, we prohibit
supervisors from dating employees who report to them. This restriction may extend to every
manager within two levels above an employee, regardless of team or department to facilitate
moving or promoting employees.

Supervisors are strictly forbidden from dating their direct reports. If this occurs, the supervisor
may face disciplinary action up to and including termination. This rule may be less strict in cases
when managers enter into a consenting relationship with an employee from another team or
department. When this happens, they must inform HR as soon as possible. It’s to their best
interest not to conceal their relationship as they may provoke disciplinary action if and when
they are discovered. HR will evaluate the situation and act accordingly (e.g. transfer an employee
or prepare a “love contract” to ensure the relationship is consensual.)

Employees will not face demotion, victimization or loss of benefits if we have to transfer them to
another team or department. The supervisor may be reprimanded depending on the
circumstances. We may terminate those who repeatedly disregard this restriction.

Couples who are married or in a domestic partnership

Employees who enter in an official relationship with another employee after they’re both hired
by our company should follow the rules outlined above.

A married employee (or an employee who has a domestic partner) who serves as hiring manager
for their team is not allowed to consider hiring their partner for open roles. This might bring
about questions of favoritism in the hiring process. They are allowed to refer their partner for
employment to other teams or departments for which they don’t have any managerial or hiring
authority.




If we discover that a hiring manager hired their partner, HR may move one of them to another
team or branch where one won’t supervise the other. The hiring manager will receive a
reprimand, as their hiring decision may have compromised our company’s commitment to equal
opportunity and avoiding favoritism.

Friendships in the workplace
Employees who work together may naturally form friendships either in or out of their workplace.
We encourage this relationship between peers, as it can help employees communicate,

collaborate and preserve harmony while working.

However, we must consider the negative consequences of forming this kind of personal
relationship. Employees who are friends might occasionally:

« Enter into disputes over borrowed money.
o Gossip about colleagues and acquaintances.
« Form cliques that exclude certain colleagues and bring discord.

o Prevent one another (whether directly or indirectly) from accepting promotions or
relocations for the sake of their friendship.

\

To mitigate possible issues, we advise our employees to:
o Discuss non-work related issues outside of the workplace.

o Ask for their managers or HR’s help when they are unable to resolve an issue or conflict
of interest.

e Follow our Code of Conduct and act professionally at all times.

« Focus on their work instead of their friendships while at the office.
Friendships with supervisors
Being friends with one’s manager may have both positive and negative consequences. On one
hand, friendship might facilitate honesty, trust and job satisfaction for both parties. But,
friendship might also make managers and employees confused about how they should treat each
other. Questions of favoritism might arise too, and result in negative feelings and loss of morale.
For these reasons, we discourage employees being friends with their managers. We do encourage

a harmonious and open relationship, but we think it’s to everyone’s best interest if managers are
not involved with their direct reports outside of the workplace.

Openness




The key point of this policy is openness. We can’t stop employees from forming relationships
with one another and trying to prohibit them from doing so could incite deceit, resentment and

gossip.

For this reason, we expect our employees to be open about their personal relationships with
colleagues. This does not mean that employees should draw attention to their relationship. But,
keeping work relationships secret may negatively impact all parties involved.

HR will be at our employees’ disposal to explain our policy, attitude and course of action in
cases of violation.

CITY’S COMMITTMENT

Just like we expect employees to comply with this policy, City of Orange Cove has
responsibilities that we are obliged to follow. We will:

« Enforce this policy to HR and senior management as well as employees.

« Treat everyone equally when taking disciplinary action without discriminating against
protected characteristics.

« Prohibit victimization, violence and retaliation of any kind.

. Examine each situation separately and consider all aspects and perspectives before
making decisions.

Our employees should follow our anti-discrimination policy at all times. For example, HR must
not penalize a homosexual couple differently than a heterosexual couple when they both have
violated the present policy in the same manner. Likewise, if a team member is discovered to have
a relationship with their manager, the person who will be transferred or terminated must not be
chosen based on their gender.

We will keep our employees’ freedom and individual rights in mind and follow the law.




